Thursday
April 23, 2020
8:45 a.m.
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

NOTE: The public can access this meeting by phone at 866899-4679, Access Code: 649-682-853
8:45-8:46
8:46-8:50
8:50-8:55
8:55-9:00

9:00-9:10
9:10-9:25

9:25-10:10

Call to order – Roll Call – Quorum Established
I.

II.

III.
IV.
V.
VI.

VII.

10:10-10:25
10:25-10:50

VIII.

Approval of Minutes
March 26, 2020 Regular Meeting*
Petitions from the Public

Personnel and Finance Matters
A. Approval of Vouchers*
Executive Session (None)
Public Hearing (None)
New Business
A. Operational Update*
B. Update – Covid-19 and Air
Pollution*
Unfinished Business
A. Briefing – FY21 Budget: Draft
Budget*

ACTION

ACTION

B. Update – Executive Director
Performance Review Process*
Staff Reports
A. Executive Director’s Report*
1. Briefing – FY19 Audit Results*
2. First Half FY20 Financial
Performance*
B. Notice of Construction Reports*
C. Contract List*

The Agency will make reasonable accommodations for any person who needs assistance to participate in the Board of
Directors’ meeting, or to access our services. Our meeting facilities are ADA accessible. Sign language services,
language translation and interpretation, and communications materials in alternative formats can be made available
given sufficient notice by contacting Judith White-Crow at 206-689-4079, or you may reach her by dialing 800-5523565, ext. 4079.
*Document included in the Board packet
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PUGET SOUND CLEAN AIR AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
March 26, 2020
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
1904 3rd Avenue, Suite 105
Seattle, WA 98101

Note: This was an online meeting under Governor Inslee’s “Stay Home, Stay Healthy”
order of March 23rd. All members were present by computer/phone. Pursuant to the

Governor’s March 24, 2020 Proclamation, signs had been placed on the door to the
meeting room where staff was conducting the online Board meeting and on entry
doors to the agency’s office. The message on those signs states, “Regarding public
attendance at the March 26th Board of Directors meeting: Pursuant to the
PROCLAMATION BY THE GOVERNOR AMENDING PROCLAMATION 20-05 20-28 Open Public
Meetings Act and Public Records Act: Public attendance at the meeting will be by
telephone. The phone access is 877-309-2073; Access Code: 537-152-165”. In addition,
the Agency’s website stated the telephone number the public could use to listen to
and/or participate in today’s Board meeting.
Board Members Present:
Eric Baker, representing Edward Wolfe, Kitsap County Commissioner
Chris Beale, City Council Member, City of Tacoma
Betty Capestany, representing Bruce Dammeier, Pierce County Executive
Stella Chao, representing the Public-at-Large
Bruce Dammeier, Pierce County Executive

Megan Dunn, Snohomish County Council Member
Katie Ketterer, representing Mayor Greg Wheeler, City of Bremerton
Paul Roberts, City Council Member, City of Everett
Christie True, representing King County Executive Dow Constantine
Board Members Absent:
Jessica Finn-Coven, representing Mayor Jenny Durkan, City of Seattle
Paul Roberts called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.
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The roll was called; a quorum was present.
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Roberts asked if there was any discussion regarding the minutes from the
February 14, 2020 Board meeting. There was no Board discussion.

Stella Chao made a motion that the minutes of the February 14, 2020 Board meeting
be approved as presented to the Board. The motion was seconded and passed
unanimously.

II. PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
Mr. Roberts opened the Petitions from the Public portion of the meeting and asked if
there was anyone present who wished to address the Board.
Craig Kenworthy said that signs had been placed on the door to the meeting room
regarding how the public can access the meeting by phone and informing the public
of the telephone number to use to access this meeting.
Mr. Roberts asked if there was anyone on the phone who wished to address the
Board.
There were no petitions from the public.
Mr. Roberts closed the public petitions portion of the meeting.
III. PERSONNEL AND FINANCE MATTERS
Approval of Vouchers
Mr. Roberts asked if there was any discussion regarding the vouchers. There was no
Board discussion.
Bruce Dammeier made a motion that the vouchers be approved as presented to the
Board. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
IV. NEW BUSINESS
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IV.A. Briefing with Washington Partners Regarding Potential Lease Agreement
Mark Fox and Ed Curtis gave a presentation to Board members about the history of
the agency’s current lease, the current situation with the landlord (Clise), and the
current real estate lease market in Seattle.
Mr. Dammeier said the market as we knew it is no longer accurate and there is no
clarity in the present situation. He said there is huge economic uncertainty going
forward and discussion at this point is premature and should be put on hold. He said
unless we are being forced to do this immediately, this is the time to hunker down,
make no changes, and keep expenses as low as possible.

Mr. Kenworthy said we will speak about specifics regarding our lease price/rates and
Clise’s lease modification price proposal during the Executive Session. He said Clise
has advised us they still intend to proceed with construction.
Mr. Curtis continued the presentation.
Mr. Dammeier said we haven’t come through a pandemic like this before, and it could
significantly alter our culture as a society. He said we don’t know how it will affect
peoples’ comfort levels with close contact. He said it may increase telework and if so,
how will businesses adapt to that. He said we have no insight into that; the amount of
uncertainty is unprecedented.
Mr. Kenworthy said we are looking at this from an emissions standpoint as well. He
said all those questions are on the table. He said before we respond, we would like to
go through the Executive Session first.
There was no further Board discussion.
V. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Mr. Roberts moved the Board into Executive Session at 9:23 a.m. to discuss lease
modification price/rates. He estimated that the Executive Session would take
approximately 30 minutes and the regular session should resume at 9:53 a.m.

Mr. Roberts called the Board back into regular session at 10:08 a.m. There was no
announcement.
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I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (continued)
Mr. Roberts asked if there was any discussion regarding the minutes from the
February 27, 2020 Board meeting. There was no Board discussion.
Eric Baker made a motion that the minutes of the February 27, 2020 Board meeting be
approved as presented to the Board. The motion was seconded and passed
unanimously.

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
VI.A. Public Hearing on Amending Regulation I, Section 6.01 (Components of New
Source Review Program
Steve Van Slyke said we briefed the Board in January 2020 about this proposed
amendment to our regulations to update our reference to Ecology’s rule (based on
the new toxicology information) so that the Agency can use the updated version of
Ecology's rule. He said we started the public comment period on February 24, 2020
and this hearing is to take any other public comments on this proposed regulation
amendment. In addition, the Agency’s website states the telephone number the
public could use to listen to and/or participate in this hearing that was publically
noticed on Feb. 24, 2020.
Mr. Roberts opened the hearing for public comment.
Mr. Dammeier said the Governor has issued some restrictions on open public
meeting act requirements. He said he is just looking for Counsel to assure the Board
that this public hearing is allowable under the Governor’s emergency proclamation.
Jennifer Dold said on February 24, 2020 we published the proposed rule and sent out
to our list serve all the different ways that people could comment on the proposed
regulation change. She said we have sent out emails a couple of times this last week
and updated our public notice to say that this current Board meeting would be by
telephone only, but please send in your email comments. She said we also posted
notice on the doors to the agency, in case anyone showed up today and consistent

with the Governor's proclamation, a notation that if you have come to the Board
meeting here today, you cannot come into the room, but here is the phone number if
you want to call and participate right now.
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Ms. Dold said at this point we believe we have done everything we need to do to
comply with the public notice requirements to have this public hearing. She said
everyone can still provide the Board with public comment on this proposed rule and
if there was someone outside our door right now, which there is not, they would have
the ability to address the board during this public comment period. She said there is

no Board action today to adopt the proposed amendment. She said if we receive
emails or letters or calls, all of those comments will be collected and the Board will be
provided those comments before they are asked to take action at an upcoming
Board meeting.
There were no comments from the public.
Mr. Roberts closed the public hearing.
Ms. Dold said that given the extraordinary circumstances that we are in, today the

agency will post a notification to our list serve and update our website saying we are
extending that public comment period an additional seven days from today. Then
we will bring any comments we receive to the Board when this matter comes before
them for action.
IV. NEW BUSINESS (Continued)
IV.B. Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair
Stella Chao made a motion to nominate Paul Roberts as Chair of the Board and
Christie True as Vice-Chair for the next term. The motion was seconded and passed
unanimously.
There was no Board discussion.
IV.C. Resolution No. 1415 - Approving the Surplus and Disposition of Agency
Inspection Vehicle

Mr. Dammeier said I just want to again, just for the record, to have Counsel indicate
whether they believe that these actions that we are taking are in compliance with the

current Emergency Order. He said I think it is important to have that on the record
since we are taking actions.
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Ms. Dold said I would say that we have properly provided notice for this action and we
believe the Board is in good standing to take the actions it is taking today, based on
the quorum, based on public notice, and the processes we are using today.
Mr. Kenworthy said we have an agency inspection vehicle, which has reached the

end of its usable lifespan. He said maintenance costs are going to continue to
accelerate on the vehicle, and it is appropriate to ask for the surplussing of that
vehicle.

Christie True made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1415 as presented to the Board.
The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
There was no Board discussion.
Mr. Dammeier said he needed to leave the call and was sorry that he would not be
present to hear a staff update on the proposed clean fuel standard, on what steps
the agency is taking to keep employees safe during the Covid-19 outbreak, and what
the agency intends to do to help local communities during this time.
(Bruce Dammeier left the call at 10:21 a.m.)
IV.D. Resolution No. 1416 - Appointing Advisory Council Ports Position
Mr. Kenworthy said we have a new proposed representative for the Northwest Ports
because the Port has recently filled the vacant position related to air quality and
climate. Mr. Steve Nicholas is specifically directed to the issues that we work on and
we would recommend that the Board approve his appointment as the new
representative for ports on the Advisory Council.
Ms. Chao made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1416 as presented to the Board.
The motion was seconded and passed unanimously.
There was no Board discussion.
IV.E. Executive Director Performance Review Feedback Process
Heather Beckford said in March the Agency typically begins the process of the
Executive Director’s review. She said the elements of the review are a self-evaluation
done by the Director, surveys completed by external stakeholders, internal peers, and
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a staff survey. She said the Board reviews those materials and then complete its
survey, followed by a final evaluation which typically happens in July. She also said
that there are no merit increases for the Executive Director in the proposed budget
for FY21, and that, in this current environment, external stakeholder feedback may be
difficult to obtain.
Ms. Beckford said HR and the General Counsel will come back in April and
recommend potential adjustments to the feedback and review process, and likely
propose a delay to the ED’s goal setting components of the review until fall of 2020.
She said she would prepare a schedule and description of the elements of the
Executive Director’s review for the April Board meeting.
There was no Board discussion.
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
VII.A Legislative Session Summary
Mr. Kenworthy said the Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Standard Bill passed. The state
CFS did not pass, nor did any of the legislation that would clarify the state Supreme
Court ruling from January regarding regulation of indirect or direct emissions.
Mr. Roberts said that budget challenges in the wake of the current health crisis will be
significant and we are going to need to consider those impacts going forward.
Mr. Kenworthy said that we have a statutory deadline of the fourth Tuesday in June to
pass the agency’s budget; however, we can operate on the best information
available at the time and go back and make adjustments as needed.

Mr. Kenworthy said almost everyone in the office is currently teleworking, with a
skeleton crew in the office. He said the agency continues to have legal obligations to
meet in terms of monitoring and compliance and that work is being done remotely.

Megan Dunn asked if municipalities are receiving advance notification when agency
staff is checking monitors or conducting on-site inspections.
Mr. Kenworthy said we have taken safety measures and are being respectful of
sources in terms of whatever concerns they might have. We have made some
adjustments on enforcement.
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There was no further Board discussion.
VIII. STAFF REPORTS
Mr. Roberts asked if there was anything further to address in the Director’s Report. He
reiterated his concerns with respect to the upcoming budget discussion and the
need to take account of the current situation.
Mr. Kenworthy said we still need to decide if there will be a May Advisory Council
meeting, and if so, whether it will be remote or on site.
With no further business, the Board meeting adjourned at 10:46 a.m.
I hereby certify this to be a true and correct record of the Minutes of the March 26,
2020, meeting of the Board of Directors of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency.
Attest:
_________________________
Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director

_______________________
Paul Roberts
Chair, Board of Directors

jwc

-8-

DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Vouchers Submitted for Approval

Honorable Members:
The following vouchers were issued in the Blanket Voucher Approval document dated March 26,
2020:
Vouchers 24700 through 24769 in the amount of $120,291.35 for Operating Expenses.
The following vouchers were issued in the Blanket Voucher Approval document dated April 9, 2020:
Vouchers 24770 through 24818 in the amount of $77,435.66 for Operating Expenses.
Copies of the above listed vouchers are attached for your review. We request that the Board
review the vouchers listed above and approve such vouchers as submitted.
Respectfully submitted,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
Attachment
jwc

DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Operational Update

Honorable Members:
I will provide an update on current operational matters at the April meeting.
Respectfully submitted,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
jwc

DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Update – COVID-19 and Air Pollution

Honorable Members:
At the next Board Meeting, staff will update you on recent interest from the public and the media
on how air pollution levels and COVID-19 relate. During this time, we’ve also asked individuals to
curtail any wood burning for reasons other than heating to avoid impacting potentially sick
neighbors.
We’ll provide a brief overview of health studies about air pollution and respiratory impacts
(including studies focused on air pollution and pandemics), an overview of vulnerable populations,
an update on recent air pollution levels, and a brief summary of our media coverage.
Respectfully submitted,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
Attachment
jwc

COVID-19 and Air Quality
Impact on public health

Board Meeting April 23, 2020

Outline
• Brief review of health (particularly respiratory) impacts of air
pollution
• Brief review of studies linking air pollution to virus susceptibility
• Higher-risk populations
• Brief summary of recent air quality, media inquiries, and voluntary
call to action

Established Health Effects of Air
•

•

•

Respiratory
•

Reduced lung function

•

Aggravation of lung disease

•

Increased lung infections

•

Asthma attacks

1
Pollution

Cardiovascular
•

Heart disease

•

Stroke

Emerging studies showing other health links, but still early (worsen insulin sensitivity,
neurological impacts)

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

1. https://www.epa.gov/isa/integrated-science-assessment-isa-particulate-matter

Air Pollution and Respiratory Impacts
•

•

•

•

Air pollution contributes to the health conditions that could
increase risk from a virus or bacteria (like COVID-19)1
Particle pollution impairs the body’s built-in protection
mechanisms1
Linked to hospital admission for respiratory infection1 and Acute
Respiratory Distress Syndrome (ARDS)2
Led to a higher viral load in-vitro3 and higher mortality from
influenza in mice4
https://unsplash.com/photos/NMZdj2Zu36M

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

1. https://www.epa.gov/isa/integrated-science-assessment-isa-particulate-matter
2. https://journal.chestnet.org/article/S0012-3692(19)30711-1/abstract
3. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/15772371
4. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/25358535

Pandemics and Air Quality
•

Limited research—difficult to estimate effect because of many confounders

•

1918 flu5

•

•

•

Tens of thousands of excess deaths due to air pollution

•

A loss of $45.9 billion; 6 percent of GDP

SARS6
•

Somewhat limited study with five cities in China

•

Showed positive association between air pollution and SARS case fatality

COVID-197
•

A very recent study looking at 3,000 counties across the US

•

A small increase in long-term exposure to PM2.5 leads to a large increase in COVID-19 death rate

•

A “1 µg/m3 in PM2.5 is associated with a 15% increase in the COVID-19 death rate”

•

Interesting result - will need to be more vetted with more analysis and duration

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

https://unsplash.com/photos/k0KRNtqcjfw

5. https://www.iza.org/publications/dp/9399/pollution-infectious-disease-and-mortality-evidence-from-the-1918-spanish-influenza-pandemic
6. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1186/1476-069X-2-15
7. https://projects.iq.harvard.edu/covid-pm

Populations at Increased Risk
•

Elderly, people with pre-existing conditions

•

Equity: People of color and low-income residents
•

More pre-existing conditions, under-insured, racial bias, higher pollution exposure8,9,10

•

Ability to work from home11
•

High-income (60%), low-income (9%)

•

Asian (37%), White (30%), Black (20%), Hispanic (16%)

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

8. https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/07/us/coronavirus-race.html
9. https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/69/wr/mm6915e3.htm?s_cid=mm6915e3_w
10. https://www.naacp.org/latest/fumes-across-fence-line-new-study-naacp-clean-air-task-force-national-medical-association/
11. https://www.bls.gov/news.release/pdf/flex2.pdf

Recent Air Quality
In our region:
•

Traffic pollutants, such as black carbon and NOx, are down 20-30% (preliminary analysis)

•

Fine particle pollution has been higher than expected

•

Meteorology has a large effect, difficult to isolate the response to COVID-19

Stagnant air, smoke build-up

March

https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/environment/coronavirusclosures-reduce-seattle-area-air-pollution-but-not-global-warming/

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

Media Inquiries
•

“One good thing about the stay-at-home order – better air quality. With fewer cars on the

road, there’s less tailpipe pollution. While roadway pollution is down, the Puget Sound Clean
Air Agency (CAA) has noticed an increase in very small particle pollution, the type of
pollution created by burning things.”12 KOMO, 4/7, author and Phil Swartzendruber
•

“the amount of very small particular pollution is actually up, probably because so many

people are home burning fireplaces and wood stoves.”13 Seattle Times, 3/31, Craig Kenworthy
•

“having a viral pandemic isn’t the way we want to see air pollution improve.”14 Crosscut, 4/6,

Erik Saganić
•

“more extensive research is necessary to understand how polluted air could impact the
outcomes of coronavirus patients.”15 KOMO, 4/8, Erik Saganić

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

12. https://komonews.com/news/consumer/wood-should-only-be-burned-for-heating-agency-advises
13. https://www.seattletimes.com/seattle-news/environment/coronavirus-closures-reduce-seattle-area-air-pollution-but-not-global-warming/
14. https://crosscut.com/2020/04/more-people-staying-home-washington-skies-are-cleaner
15. https://komonews.com/news/coronavirus/study-air-pollution-may-increase-risk-of-dying-from-covid-19

Actions
•

Media inquiries and social media

•

Voluntary burn ban
•

Our message: To reduce local pollution and help our most at-risk friends
and neighbors during the COVID-19 pandemic, please burn wood only
for heating purposes and avoid any outdoor fires.

•

Coordination with other local air quality agencies and state

COVID-19 and Air Quality
April 16, 2020

DATE
TO
SUBJECT

April 16, 2020
Board of Directors

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Briefing – FY21 Draft Budget

Honorable Members:
The impacts of Covid-19 demand that we take prudent actions to control costs and maintain fiscal
stability while achieving our critical clean air mission. To provide context, I will brief you on the
status of our federal and state funding sources as part of this draft budget conversation.
Below are the key assumptions we are using in preparing a FY21 budget. We’ll be looking for your
guidance on these items so we can prepare a final proposed budget for your May meeting. The
key assumptions:
•

Agency managers were instructed to review and reduce expenses for the remainder of
FY20 (April – June 2020) and for the FY21 draft budget. The expenses section below
describes additional expense reductions that we are incorporating into the FY21 budget.

•

A hiring freeze is in effect – the only exceptions are adding one person in HR and a needed IT
Programmer position. Any other hiring (e.g., replacement of a vacated position that cannot
be covered by another employee) must be approved on a case-by-case basis by me.

•

Manager merit compensation for both current year FY20 and FY21 is eliminated.

•

I am also asking the Board to reduce my FY21 salary by 5%.

•

Based on those reductions, I am proposing a reduced per capita rate for FY21 – a reduction
of $.03 to $.80 from the current FY20 rate of $.83. This assumes a flat rate in FY22 and FY23.
This will reduce per capita fee billings by about $126k in FY21.
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FY20

Per Capita:
CY Billings at current rate
Rate

$

Population
Population change

CY Billings at reduced rate
Rate
Population
Population change

•

$

FY21

3,431,768

3,488,822

4,134,660
1.67%

4,203,400
1.66%

3,431,768

3,362,720

0.83 $

0.83 $
4,134,660
1.67%

0.83
We already have the
population basis for FY21

126,102

0.80
4,203,400
1.66%

Because of the uncertainty on state and federal funding, I am also proposing that we use
some of those savings to increase the General Fund Reserve (our rainy day fund) by
$250,000 or by approximately 50%.

Revenues
Table 1 lays out our major sources of funding for the period of FY20 through FY22:

Table 1 - Revenues

FY20

Recurring Grants:
Federal Core (Sec 105) Grant
State Core Grant
PM2.5 (Sec 103) Grant
Woodstove Replacement/Removal Grant
Wood Smoke Educ & Enf Grant
Subtotal

$

Non-Recurring Grants:
Federal and State Diesel Emissions Grants
Per Capita (Supplemental Income) Revenues
Fee Programs (Asbestos, Notice of Construction,
Registration & Operating Permits
Civil Penalty Collections
Interest Income
Clean Cities Dues
Total Revenues
% Change

921,729
666,906
85,225
367,718
75,328
2,116,907

FY21

921,729 $ 921,729
666,903
666,909
65,007
65,005
419,282
75,325
75,345
2,148,247
1,728,987

754,682

1,258,199

3,403,606

3,397,244

5,631,067
1,703,978
150,000
23,000
$ 13,783,239

3,362,720

5,556,067
5,556,067
300,000
80,000
35,000
12,439,757 $ 10,982,774
-10%
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FY22

-12%

•

Recurring Grants – Part of the federal core grant we receive in FY21 was already
appropriated in federal FY2020. The remaining part is still in question. The state core grant
is in question, given the state budget.

•

Non-Recurring Grants – This is difficult to assess. State side grants like the woodstove grant,
which is funded through MTCA are definitely at risk. Federal grants are uncertain but there is
the possibility of targeted added funding for things like diesel emission reductions.

•

Per Capita (Supplemental Income) – we are proposing to reduce the rate from $.83 in FY20
to $.80 in FY21 and FY22.

•

Fee Programs – the fee programs will definitely be affected by the economic fallout from
the Covid-19 epidemic. At this time, we don’t have enough information to alter the projected
revenues but will be addressing future impacts by adjusting expenses.

•

Interest Income – we have lowered the projected interest income on the reserves in the King
County Investment Pool (Pool) using the lower yields projected by the Pool and assuming
that we will have lower reserves in some areas. While this fund is expected to be about

$452k by year-end FY20, approximately half of this is due to fee program reserves in the Pool
and another 10% is due to previously collected civil penalties, leaving only about 40% of this
fund for non-fee program use.
•

Clean Cities – we are transitioning this Department of Energy program to the Columbia
Willamette Clean Cities Coalition which will expand its geographic coverage.

Expenses
In the last few weeks, managers have reviewed current year and FY21 non-personnel expenditures
for potential savings. The goal was to reduce expenditures to a level that would enable us to keep
achieving our Strategic Plan objectives, while setting aside a portion of the savings in the General
Fund Reserve. That will allow us to maintain stability as we look for direction from the Board in FY21
through adoption of an updated strategic plan (the current plans ends at the end of calendar
2020). The savings also allows us to propose a reduction in the FY21 capita rate.
•

Personnel Expenses – FY20 FTEs will be 6.3 lower than planned, resulting in $818k savings in
FY20 – of these reductions, 3.3 FTES were permanent reductions in positions and 3 FTEs were

hirings that were delayed into later quarters of FY20 or FY21. FY20 and 21 personnel expenses
were also reduced from the earlier March draft budget based on the elimination of
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manager merit. Of the 4.4 FTE increase from the FY20 estimate to the FY21 draft budget,
there is only one new 60% FTE position in FY21 for a part-time Sr. Engineer needed to address
permitting work in compliance. The balance is due to filling open positions delayed from
FY20.
•

Operating Expenses – Table 2 shows the reductions in operating expenses separately from
changes in grant pass-through expenditures since the latter were revised for carryovers
into FY21 and are bottom-line neutral. Ongoing operating expenses for FY20 and FY21 were
reduced by $781k. These reduced expenditures are comprised not only of reductions in
general operating costs (technical equipment purchases, inspection vehicle purchases,
travel & training, consultants, recruitment, financial systems) but also of reductions in
various programs such as community/equity engagement and outreach, technical
analyses, low-income zero emission vehicle (ZEV) carshare, transportation projects and
outreach, and woodstove education and outreach.

Table 2 - Expenses

FY20

Amended
Budget
FTEs
Personnel Expense
Grant Pass-through Expenditures
Operating Expenses
Total Expenses

Revised
Projection

FY21

Reduction

Original
Draft
Budget
(late March)

73.1

66.8

(6.3)

71.2

10,036,281
2,267,660
3,431,477
$ 15,735,418

9,217,821
958,315
2,928,799
13,104,935

(818,460)
(1,309,345)
(502,678)
(2,630,483)

10,259,226
1,548,002
3,070,492
14,877,721

Revised
Draft
Budget
(April)
71.2

Reduction
0

10,197,080
(62,147)
1,544,437
(3,565)
(278,457)
2,792,036
14,533,552 $ (344,169)

Some of the proposed expense reductions are the result of work that was no longer viable in FY20
or early FY21 such as outreach events or non-mandatory training or travel. Others were more

difficult but I believe we retain our critical capacity to achieve our mission. That said, the staff and I
realize that additional difficult choices remain ahead and we look toward getting direction from
the Board as we proceed through these challenges.
Respectfully,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
jwc
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DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Executive Director’s Performance Review Process

Honorable Members:
The purpose of this agenda item is to have a discussion among Board members and reach a
decision about the timeline and content of the Executive Director’s Performance Review.
Human Resources and General Counsel will present recommendations to the Board.
Respectfully submitted,

Heather Beckford
HR Manager
jwc

DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Executive Director’s Report

Honorable Members:
We’re still doing our work to reduce air pollution, a task made even more vital in the midst of a
respiratory pandemic. As part of that and to help our most at-risk friends and neighbors during
the COVID-19 pandemic, we’ve asked the public to burn wood only for heating purposes and avoid
any outdoor fires.
Here are some highlights on what we’ve been doing to clean the air and protect the climate.
GOAL ONE – PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT FROM AIR POLLUTION
Objective 1.2 – Reduce transportation emissions, especially diesel particulate, in highly impacted
locations
After submitting a Letter of Intent to the Washington Department of Commerce to apply for a

grant to install infrastructure for electric chargers for up to 16 electric yard hostlers at the BNSF
South Seattle railyard in Tukwila’s Allentown neighborhood, we are now crafting the actual grant
application for this project. Allentown is in one of our focus area communities; we expect that this
project, if selected for funding, will not only reduce harmful diesel particle pollution emissions in the
area, it will also serve as a model for electrifying cargo-handling equipment at other rail yards and
container terminals.
Objective 1.3 – Reduce emissions and exposures from wood smoke and outdoor burning
As of April 8th, our FY20-21 Ecology grant-funded Wood Stove Program had 233 households follow

through with their recycling projects (99 in King County, 72 in Pierce County, and 62 in Snohomish
County) and have been issued their $350 reward check for scrapping their old wood stove.
Another 91 households have funds reserved or redeemed for their $1,500 Replacement Discount
project (offered only in Snohomish County) to upgrade to a cleaner heating appliance.

For our agency-funded Kitsap County drop-off recycling effort, so far 97 households have followed
through with their recycling project and have been issued a $350 reward for scrapping their old
wood stove.
The combined programs, serving all our four counties, have incentivized the removal of 421 old
wood stoves/inserts since the beginning of the fiscal year.
In early March we ran a short series of print ads in the Everett Herald, Marysville Globe, and
Arlington Times. We are currently holding off on other planned springtime advertising, given the
public attention focused on the COVID-19 pandemic. The Wood Stove Program team has updated
its program web page with special messaging regarding COVID-19 and have been reaching out to
pre-qualified program customers to offer extensions for their projects so they can comfortably
follow through after the “Stay Home, Stay Healthy” order is lifted.
1.5 Characterize and communicate air quality throughout the region, with the active participation
of the public
As local health departments’ technical and communications teams are in high demand right now,
we’ve offered help to each of the four counties this month from our technical staff and
communications staff. With the importance of reducing the burden to our local health
departments, we can dedicate some of our skills in mapping, public health and risk analysis, and
risk communication to the situation if they want.
With the arrival of COVID-19, we have received many questions from the media about air quality
impacts. Some of the topics covered in the resulting stories include: our request to voluntarily
curtail wood burning, how air pollution impacts respiratory health; increases in wood smoke due to
people spending more time at home, near-road air pollution and greenhouse gas reductions from
decreased traffic, and, of course, how a global pandemic is not how we would like to air quality in
our region improve. We have been in contact with the following media outlets: KIRO, KOMO Radio
and KOMOTV, Daily Herald, Crosscut, Seattle Times, and Q13.
Objective 1.6 – Reduce inequities in air pollution exposure
Duwamish engagement team members, Nina Lawonn, Adam Petrusky, and Joanna Gangi,
participated in the most recent Clean Air Program meeting hosted by the Duwamish River
Cleanup Coalition. The goal of the program is to share resources and build strategies to create
clean air for the Duwamish Valley residents and workers. There are multiple stakeholders that are
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part of the program including King County Public Health, Port of Seattle, NW Seaport Alliance,
American Lung Association, and multiple community based organizations.
Agency staff is also actively working with Villa Communitaria, a well-known community-based
organization, to design and support a low-income EV car-share pilot program located in the
community of South Park.
During the latter part of 2019 and the first few months of 2020 we have been working on a project
that could become a blueprint for future community engagement. With input from different
Agency departments, we developed a health training curriculum focused on the definition of air
pollution, the relation between air pollution and health, and its impact on health conditions such as
asthma, heart disease, etc.
We are working with community members and peer health educators to review the modules to
ensure our message is relevant and valuable to their audience. This style of information sharing

will help both the Agency disseminate in-depth education and build awareness, as well as add
what we hope is meaningful content for our communities by providing a capacity-building
resource.
GOAL TWO – BECOME THE MOST CLIMATE-FRIENDLY REGION IN THE UNITED STATES
Objective 2.1 – Reduce emissions of greenhouse gases from transportation

The Agency has hosted the Western Washington Clean Cities Coalition (WWCCC), a program of
the Department of Energy, for over a decade, having taken over host status from the City of
Seattle. Over the past year we have worked closely with the Columbia-Willamette Clean Cities
Coalition (CWCCC), which covers western Oregon and the southern-most counties of western
Washington, to take a Pacific Northwest-sized approach to clean fuels and petroleum reduction.
We are continuing to work with CWCCC to transition many of our Coalition’s educational and
technical activities to CWCCC under a new subcontract with them to administer the bulk of
WWCCC’s deliverables from our annual agreement with the US Department of Energy. This will
enable us to further support and develop events and webinars that offer a regional approach to
clean transportation initiatives.
EXCELLENCE GOAL – EMPLOY THE BEST PEOPLE, POLICIES, AND PRACTICES TO ACHIEVE OUR WORK
Objective 3.2 – Develop a culture that integrates environmental justice and equity principles into

our day-to-day work and decisions
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The equity team hosted the latest Equity Workshop Series via a virtual platform where we viewed a
portion of the documentary Race: The Power of Illusion, and discussed race on a broader level as
well as how our country’s history around race impacts our work at the Agency.
2020 REMAINING BOARD MEETING DATES (as of May 1)
May 28 (Typically budget approval)
June 18
July 23 (Typically Executive Directors performance review)
August – no meeting
September 24
October 22
November 19 (Possible joint meeting with the Advisory Council)
December 17
GENERAL
In my role as co-chair for the funding committee of our national association, I’ve been working on
some potential enhanced funding at the federal level. More on that when we brief you on the
budget.
We have attached Board memos and supporting documents to this report for the FY19 Audit
Results Briefing and the First Half FY20 Financial Performance agenda items. These are normally
short briefing items, so please let me know what questions you have.
Respectfully submitted,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
Attachment
jwc
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DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

First Half FY20 Financial Performance

Honorable Members:
This memo and the attached schedule summarize the agency’s first half FY20 financial
performance (July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019). Attachment A provides a detailed financial
statement of revenues, expenses and fund appropriations.
Total revenues for the first half were $7.0 million, or slightly over half of the annual budget, and total
expenses were $5.9 million, or about 38% of the annual budget – this resulted in a net surplus of $1.1
million. The surplus, a typical pattern for this period, was due to recognizing the full calendar year
2020 revenues for Registration and Operating Permits fee renewals.
Revenues
Table 1 shows the revenue summary for the first half. While total revenues were slightly over half
the budget, there were variations in the funding sources. Compliance program revenues (Notice

of Construction, Asbestos removal, Registration, and Operating Permit programs) are at 95% of the
budget and reflect the full annual billings for Registration and Operating Permit fees for stationary
sources. Compliance revenues will continue to increase for the second half due to continued
permitting activity for Notice of Construction and Asbestos programs (however, we are noting a
slowdown of these fees in March).

The CY2020 per capita assessments were sent out in January and will be recognized in the third
quarter financials. We are currently working on five recurring grants (federal/state core grants,

PM2.5 grant, Clean Cities grant, and woodstove education grant) and six non-recurring grants
(diesel emissions or wood smoke reduction grants). We expect to complete the work on the five
recurring grants; however, it’s possible that the diesel grants may be extended beyond their term
dates if sub-recipients cannot meet their cost share amounts.
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Due to the impact of Covid-19 on financial markets, we expect to see the yield on reserves in the
King County Investment Pool, currently at 2.1%, to continue to decrease for balance of the year. We
will likely be under budget by the end of the fiscal year.

FY20 Year-to-Date December

Table 1 - Revenues

December YTD Amended Budget
Federal Grants
State Grants
State & Local Contracts
Supplemental Income (Per Capita)
Compliance Program Fee Revenues
Civil Penalty Collections
Interest Income
Other
Total Revenues

$

$

Federal and State Grants:
# of Recurring grants
# of Non-recurring, multi-year grants and contracts
Total

942,121 $
503,835
132
5,192,555
219,500
83,787
23,492
6,965,422 $

2,781,405
1,505,085
3,403,606
5,494,171
210,000
12,000
13,406,268

% of Annual
Budget
33.9%
33.5%
0.0%
0.0%
94.5%
0.0%
39.9%
195.8%
52.0%

5
8
13

Expenses
Table 2 summarizes the components of total expenses of $5.9 million for the first half. Total

expenses for the first half of FY20 were running below budget due not only to underspending in
work plan expenses (mostly grant pass-through costs), but also to general underspending. First
half FY20 expenses were about 3% higher than the same period in FY19 due mainly to higher work
plan expenses (grant pass-through costs) in FY20. Personnel expenses ($4.5 million) for the first
half were running under budget due to open positions and were about 4% higher than the prior
year same period (cost-of-living adjustments and a slightly higher number of FTEs). Operating
expenses and equipment expenditures were under budget and we expect to end the year under
budget due to steps that we are taking now to reduce FY20 expenses.
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FY20 Year-to-Date December

Table 2 - Expenses

Amended
Budget
4,463,542 $
10,036,281

December YTD
Personnel Expenses

$

Work Plan Expenses
Operating Expenses
Equipment Expenditures
Total Expenses

584,753

$

773,435
79,924
5,901,654 $

% of Annual
Budget
44.5%

FY19 Actual
(same period)

$

4,313,107

2,859,092

20.5%

285,630

2,569,217
270,828
15,735,418

30.1%
29.5%
37.5%

975,289
134,297
5,708,322

$

Fund Balances
We have included more information on the status of fiscal year-end fund balances in the budget
memo. If you have any questions, contact me at 206-689-4004 or craigk@pscleanair.org, or Karen
Houser, Finance Manager, at 206-689-4036 or karenh@pscleanair.org.
Respectfully submitted,

Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
Attachment
jwc
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Attachment A

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
FY20 First Half Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget
For the year-to-date July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019
6 months = 50%

YTD Actual

FY20
Amended
Budget (Nov)

416,174
38,850

927,776
85,198

Clean Cities Coalition (DOE)

48,750

33,000

147.7%

Marine Eng Repl - DERA/EPA

14,889

411,431

3.6%

School Bus-Propane(DERA/EPA)
Marine Engine Replacement
(DERA/EPA/Ecology) - Federal portion

420,086

889,000

47.3%

3,372

435,000

Subtotal - Federal Grants
State Grants:
State Core (Ecology)
Ecology ScRAPS Support - DPF, Training,
Incentives, Emissions Eval.
Marine Engine Replacement
(DERA/EPA/Ecology) - State portion
Woodstove Repl/Removal (Ecol)

942,121

2,781,405

306,736

663,604

Federal Grants:
105 Grant - Federal Core (EPA/Ecology)
Sec 103 Grant - PM 2.5 (EPA/Ecology)

WoodStove Educ & Enf Grant (Ecology)
Harley Shorepower Grant (Ecology)
Subtotal - State Grants
Contracts:
Drive Oregon (WWCCC contract)
Subtotal - Contracts
Supplemental Income:
Per Capita - Cities and Counties
Subtotal - Supplemental Income
Program Fees:
Asbestos
Notice of Construction
Registration
Operating Permits
Subtotal - Program Fees
Other Revenues:
Civil Penalties Collections
Miscellaneous Revenue
Clean Cities Coalition Dues
Interest Income
Subtotal - Other Revenues
Total Revenues
Personnel Expenses:
Salaries & Wages
Benefits
Total Personnel Expenses

2,594

290,000
476,135

26,083
977
503,835

75,346
1,505,085

-

-

44.9% Under budget but will be spent by fiscal year end
45.6% Under budget but will be spent by fiscal year end

Dept of Energy grant to support Clean Cities Coalition - we have received a
grant renewal for this in February but this work will be contracted out going
forward
Most of this has been assigned to subrecipients but the work is not yet
completed
90% of this funding has been earmarked for school district subrecipients we expect to complete the grant by fiscal year-end
New grant with the Dept of Ecology - includes funding from EPA and WA

1,605
165,840

132
132

% of
Budget

3,403,606
3,403,606

334,070
237,700

645,000
460,000

2,986,475
1,583,630
5,141,875

2,799,009
1,590,162
5,494,171

0.8% state - November budget amendment
33.9%
46.2% Under budget but will be spent by fiscal year end
0.0% Carryover of work from the prior year
New grant with the Dept of Ecology - includes funding from EPA and WA

0.6% state - November budget amendment
34.8% Under budget

34.6% Under budget but will be spent by fiscal year end
0.0% Carryover of work from the prior year
33.5%
0.0% Carryover of work from the prior year
0.0%
0.0% The CY20 revenues of $3.4 million will be recognized in January
0.0%
51.8% Close to budgeted estimate
51.7% Close to budgeted estimate

This will be adjusted at fiscal year-end for doubtful accounts based on

106.7% collection experience from January to June
99.6% Close to budgeted amount - same number of stationary sources
93.6%

269,500

-

0.0% Civil penalty collections - these are not budgeted

972

-

0.0% returned to agency

23,200
83,787
377,459

12,000
210,000
222,000

$ 6,965,422 $ 13,406,268

Agricultural burning permits, public records fees, and jury duty payments
Includes dues from Clean Cities members and sponsorships from the City of

193.3% Seattle ($10k) and King County ($5k)
39.9% Under budget
170.0%
52.0%

3,240,110
1,223,433
4,463,542

7,316,378
2,719,904
10,036,281

44.3% Under budget
45.0% Under budget
44.5%

Work Plan Expenses
Operating Supplies

584,753
16,919

2,859,092
46,800

20.5% expenditures)
36.2% Under budget

Professional Services
Telephone
Postage
Meetings
Travel & Training
Transportation

107,171
29,326
7,808
9,364
66,804
20,916

939,500
61,400
12,525
19,000
222,725
43,305

Underspending is the result of delayed grant work (pass-through

11.4%
47.8%
62.3%
49.3%
30.0%
48.3%

Underspending - lower than planned legal and HR contract expenses for the
first quarter
Under budget
Running ahead of budget
Close to budget
Under budget
Close to budget
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Attachment A

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
FY20 First Half Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget
For the year-to-date July 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019
6 months = 50%

Rent & Utilities
Insurance
Software & Maintenance
Repairs & Maintenance
Legal Expenses
Printing
Merchant & Bank Fees
Subtotal - Operating Expenses
Computer & Office Equipment

YTD Actual

FY20
Amended
Budget (Nov)

359,281
45,557

742,835
104,061

27,629
30,906
7,361
8,715

175,941
88,000
23,596
8,500

43,586
1,366,097
35,966

81,029
5,428,309
90,328

% of
Budget

48.4% Close to budget
43.8% Close to budget

15.7%
35.1%
31.2%
102.5%

Software purchases (Microsoft Cloud) will occur in the second half of the
fiscal year
Running ahead of budget but will not exceed budget by fiscal year-end
Under budget
Ahead of budget - logo change
The majority of these annual costs occur in the second and third quarters merchant fees charged on credit card payments for registration and
operating permit fees

53.8%
25.2%
39.8% Equipment purchases will occur in second half

Vehicles
Technical/Scientific Equipment
Subtotal - Equipment
Gain/Loss on Disposition of Assets
Total Expenses

36,977
117,000
6,980
63,500
79,924
270,828
(7,909)
$ 5,901,654 $ 15,735,418

31.6% Additional vehicle purchases will occur in second half (Inspectors' vehicles)
11.0% Running under budget
29.5%
0.0% Net procceeds from the auction of a fully depreciated vehicle
37.5%

Net Before Appropriations

$ 1,063,768 $ (2,329,150)

-45.7%

Appropriations from (Contributions to)
Fund Balances
Per Capita - Net Draw (Contr) Operations
Per Capita Draw - Dept Reserves
Gen Equip & Assets Reserve
Civil Penalty Collections
Civil Penalties Draws
Civil Penalties - Transfers
Subtotal - Discretionary Funds
Diesel Grant Fund
Compliance Reserve
Fee Programs
Legal Dept Reserve
Other
Interest Income Fund
Clean Cities Coalition
Subtotal - Appropriations
(Contributions)
Net

1,550,142
(3,213)
(269,500)

607,283
-

78,158
1,000,000
2,355,587

219,051
1,000,000
1,826,334

7,430
4,321

145,365
-

(2,361,392)

1,117,451

(943,926)
(12,114)
(83,787)
(29,887)
(1,063,768)
-

(550,000)
(210,000)
-

The draw on the per capita fund exceeded the budget in the first half - this
will reverse to a contribution to fund balance in January when billings are
issued

Civil penalty collections are not budgeted
Draws to fire districts reimbursement for outdoor burning complaint
responses and to reimburse Registration program expenses
Transfer of funds to the legal reserve per the approved budget

Per budget, transportation staff time is being charged to this fund
Public meeting ($4k) funded by the Compliance reserve
First half contribution due to annual billings for Registration and Operating
Permits in November
We transferred $1.0 million from the previously collected civil penalties to
the legal fund to fund the next few years' potential legal expenses
Miscellaneous - timing of receipts v. expenses
Slightly below projected interest income
Clean Cities dues and sponsorships net of expenses

2,329,150
-
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DATE

April 16, 2020

TO

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

SUBJECT

Briefing – FY19 Audit Results

Honorable Members:
The Washington State Auditor’s office recently concluded the annual audit of the agency’s financial
reporting and performance. We have attached the final FY19 audit report including accompanying
schedules – the audit addressed several areas:
•
•

Financial statements – the auditor reviewed whether financial statements were presented fairly in
all material respects
Federal compliance – the auditor tested compliance with federal regulations for grants (selected
the Federal Core Grant for testing)

We are pleased to report that the state auditor’s office issued clean audit reports for each of the areas
above and there was no management letter. We reviewed with the auditor some exit items during our
final meeting, which included some classification changes, which we are discussing with the state
auditor, and minor corrections for the FY20 financial statements (see the attached exit conference
report).

The cost of the FY19 audit was about $22k. The auditor noted that, due to increased reporting
compliance requirements issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in recent
years, our future audit costs will increase. This increase, along with the additional accountability
auditing, will add about $7k to our annual audit costs.
If you have any questions, please contact me at 206-689-4004 or CraigK@pscleanair.org.
Respectfully submitted,
Craig T. Kenworthy
Executive Director
Attachment
jwc

Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit
Report

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
For the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

Published March 26, 2020
Report No. 1025976

Office of the Washington State Auditor
Pat McCarthy
March 26, 2020

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Seattle, Washington

Report on Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit
Please find attached our report on the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency’s financial statements and
compliance with federal laws and regulations.
We are issuing this report in order to provide information on the Agency’s financial condition.
Sincerely,

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (564) 999-0950  Pat.McCarthy@sao.wa.gov
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
The results of our audit of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency are summarized below in accordance
with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements
We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP).
Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Agency.

Federal Awards
Internal Control over Major Programs:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the Agency’s compliance with requirements applicable to its
major federal program.
We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs
The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.
CFDA No.
66.605

Program or Cluster Title
Performance Partnership Grants

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.
The Agency did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS
None reported.

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Seattle, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 23, 2020.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Agency’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Agency’s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to
disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government
operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 23, 2020

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Seattle, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM
We have audited the compliance of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Agency’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Agency’s major federal programs are
identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Agency’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
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referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Agency’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Agency’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the Agency is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Agency’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s
internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also
serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 23, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

Board of Directors
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Seattle, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed on page 14.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Agency’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
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design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, as of June 30, 2019, and the changes
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 14
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
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required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 23, 2020 on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

March 23, 2020
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2019

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position – 2019
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – 2019
Statement of Cash Flows – 2019
Notes to Financial Statements – 2019

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – 2019
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2019
Schedule of Employer Contributions – PERS 1, PERS 2/3 – 2019

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2019
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2019
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Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Fiscal Year 2019 – July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Management Discussion and Analysis
This section of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency (the “Agency”) financial report for the fiscal year 2019 (July 1,
2018 to June 30, 2019) provides an overview of the Agency’s financial activities, highlights significant financial
issues, and provides comparative data to the prior fiscal year. The Management Discussion and Analysis
should be considered in conjunction with Agency’s financial statements and notes to the financials.
Agency Background
The Puget Sound Clean Air Agency has operated under the federal Clean Air Act and the Washington State
Clean Air Act for over fifty years and is responsible for air pollution control in King, Pierce, Snohomish and
Kitsap Counties. The goals and objectives of the Agency’s 2014-2020 Strategic Plan, available on our website
(www.pscleanair.org), are:
1. Protect public health and the environment from air pollution
1.1 Meet National Ambient Air Quality Standards
1.2 Reduce transportation emissions, especially diesel particulate, in highly impacted locations
1.3 Reduce emissions and exposures from wood smoke and outdoor burning
1.4 Prevent, reduce and control emissions and exposure from significant stationary sources of air
pollution
1.5 Characterize and communicate air quality throughout the region, with the active participation of the
public
1.6 Reduce inequities in air pollution exposure
2. Become the most climate-friendly region in the United States
2.1 Reduce emissions of greenhouse gases from transportation
3. Employ the best people, policies, and practices to achieve our work
3.1 Attract, retain and inspire exceptional staff
3.2 Develop a culture that integrates environmental justice and equity principles into our day-to-day
work and decisions
3.3 Engage in meaningful dialogue and outreach with all sectors of the public
3.4 Build the agency’s long-term financial strength and ensure accountability
3.5 Be a model of environmental sustainability
The Agency has made significant progress on the goals in the Strategic Plan and periodically updates its Board
of Directors on the status of those goals and objectives.
Overview of the Financial Statements
The Agency’s financial statements are reported as a single proprietary fund and are comprised of these
schedules: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Position, 3) Statement of Cash Flows, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. In addition, the
Management Discussion & Analysis, Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule
of Employer Contributions and the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios are
included as required supplementary schedules.
The Statement of Net Position provides information on the financial position of the Agency’s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position at year-end. The change in net position may be an
indicator, over time, of the financial health of the Agency. Net position is classified on this statement as:
x
x
x

Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted (the use of the funds are restricted by an external entity)
Unrestricted (the use of the funds may be controlled by internal reserve policies)

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position presents information on all
transactions that affect net position in the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows; therefore, revenues and expenses are
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reported for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. Revenues are classified as either
“operating”, those revenues which support specific programs and are fee-for-service, or as “non-operating”,
those revenues that are grants, grant-related contracts or miscellaneous minor revenues that do not specifically
support a program.
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information on the sources and uses of cash flows in the categories
shown below:
x Cash Flows from Operating Activities
x Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
x Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
x Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Financial Highlights
x

As of June 30, 2019, the Agency’s total assets of $12.5 million exceeded liabilities of $8.0 million by
$4.5 million. In combination with the net amount of Deferred Outflows of Resources ($1.0 million) and
Deferred Inflow of Resources ($2.1 million), this resulted in a net position of $3.4 million. Of the net
position amount, $4.7 million was restricted for specific purposes related to grant, contract, or legislative
requirements, $.7 million represented the net investment in capital assets, and the unrestricted portion
was negative ($2.0 million) due to the recognition of the Agency’s portion of the unfunded Washington
state pension liabilities and post-employment benefits liabilities.

x

The Agency’s net position increased by $.9 million from the prior year. The increase was due primarily
to the decrease in long-term liabilities mainly as the result of the decrease in the agency’s proportionate
projected share of the state PERS pension liability.

x

Total operating revenues were $9.2 million, a 2.8% increase from the prior year due to increases in
permitting activity for the asbestos and registration programs. In addition, supplemental income (per
capita) assessments increased in 2019 due to population growth in our four-county jurisdiction and due
to a one-cent increase in the assessment rate. These revenues consist of Charges for Services (fee
programs), Supplemental Income (Per Capita), and other operating revenues.

x

Total operating expenses for the Agency were $9.0 million, an 8% increase due to increased personnel
expenses (filling open inspection and engineer positions in 2019), increased legal, temporary help and
consulting expenses.

x

Net non-operating revenues increased 2.5% due mainly to increased investment income (both earned
and due to an increase in market value).

x

The Agency ended the fiscal year with a small net surplus ($78,518) and a total net position of $2.6
million.
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Discussion of the Financial Statements
Comparative Statement of Net Position
An analysis of net position, the excess of assets over liabilities, may serve as a useful indicator of an Agency’s
financial position. Table 1 summarizes assets, liabilities, and the components of net position - net investment in
capital assets (total capital assets less accumulated depreciation), restricted (restricted by external
requirements), and unrestricted.
TABLE 1
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Non-current Assets
Total Assets

$

2019

2018

11,839,124 $
690,323
12,529,447

11,708,843 $
642,300
12,351,143

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Change
130,281
48,023
178,304

990,708

1,085,150

(94,442)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

1,034,567
6,950,596
7,985,163

966,113
8,595,422
9,561,535

68,454
(1,644,826)
(1,576,372)

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

2,130,671

1,398,774

731,897

647,669

599,646

48,023

4,729,463
(1,972,811)
3,404,321 $

4,754,710
(2,878,371)
2,475,985 $

(25,247)
905,560
928,336

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted (Grant, Legislative or Contract restrictions)
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Assets
At fiscal year-end 2019, total assets were $12.5 million. Total assets grew (1.4%) from the prior year, due to the
increase in cash balances mostly because of the increase in cash and cash equivalents and to the purchase of
equipment.
As shown in Table 2 below, current assets (comprised of cash and investments, accounts receivable and
prepaid assets) were $11.8 million at the end of 2019. This was an increase (1.4%) from the prior year and the
change was due to a combination of factors. Cash and investments increased due to the combination of higher
per capita reserves (2.1% increase in population and a $.01 increase in the rate) combined with expense
underspending, and increased interest income earned for agency reserves held in the King County Investment
Pool. Total receivables decreased mainly as a result of the decrease in federal and state grant revenues and
receivables.
TABLE 2
CURRENT ASSETS
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable (Net)
Prepaids
Total Current Assets

$

$

2019

2018

10,150,855 $
1,566,793
121,477
11,839,124 $

9,896,660 $
1,691,722
120,461
11,708,843 $

Change
254,195
(124,930)
1,016
130,281

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding
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Non-Current Assets
Non-current assets (Table 1) consist of Deposits (security deposit for the office lease) and Net Capital Assets
(total capital assets less accumulated depreciation). At fiscal year-end 2019, non-current assets were $.7
million, a 7.5% increase from the prior year. The increase was primarily due to the purchase of air quality
monitoring equipment and computer equipment (see note 4 – Capital Assets).
Liabilities
Table 3 shows the key components of liabilities and their changes from the prior year. Total liabilities at June
30, 2019 were $8.0 million, a decrease of $1.6 million from 2018 mainly as the result of the decrease in the
agency’s proportionate share of the state PERS pension liability (see Note 6 – Pension Plans). Smaller offsets
than?the decrease in the net pension liability were an increase in accounts payable (year-end accrual for a
consultant working on the Clean Fuels Standard), an increase in accrued payroll liabilities, increases in current
and non-current compensated absences liabilities (see Note 11 – Changes in Long Term Liabilities - employees
earned more leave and used less than the prior year) and an increase in the OPEB liability (see Note 7 – Other
Postemployment Benefit Plans).
TABLE 3
LIABILITIES
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
2019
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

$

2018

299,994 $

Accrued Payroll Liabilities

Change

246,567 $

53,427

31,889

24,690

7,199

Compensated Absences and Excess Compensation - Current
Other Current Liabilities
Subtotal - Current Liabilities

701,955
728
1,034,567

693,206
1,649
966,113

8,749
(921)
68,454

Compensated Absences - Non-current
Other Post Employment Benefits Liability
Net Pension Liability
Subtotal - Non-Current Liabilities

71,889
3,743,649
3,135,057
6,950,596

33,696
3,701,360
4,860,366
8,595,422

38,193
42,289
(1,725,308)
(1,644,826)

7,985,163 $

9,561,535 $

(1,576,372)

Total Liabilities

$

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
The deferred outflows and inflows shown on the Comparative Statement of Net Position in Table 1 are the result
of implementing GASB 68 (Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions) to reflect the Agency’s portion of
the state’s net pension liability and from implementing GASB 75 for recognizing liabilities for post-employment
benefits (OPEB). Deferred outflows have a positive effect on net position and deferred inflows have a negative
effect on net position. In FY19, deferred outflows decreased by $94,442 mainly as a result of the change in the
net difference between expected and actual experience for PERS Plan 2 and 3. In FY19, deferred inflows
increased by $.7 million due primarily to increases in deferred inflows from pension liabilities (see Notes 6 and
7).
TABLE 4
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
2019
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred Outflows - Pensions
Deferred Outflows - Other Post Employment Benefits
Total - Deferred Outflows
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Inflows - Pensions
Deferred Inflows - Other Post Employment Benefits
Total - Deferred Inflows

2018

Change

930,316
60,392
990,708

1,034,062
51,088
1,085,150

(103,746)
9,304
(94,442)

1,535,282
595,389
2,130,671

913,339
485,435
1,398,774

621,943
109,954
731,897

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding
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Net Position
We summarize the key elements of the Agency’s net position in Table 5 at the end of this section. Net position
is the overall excess of assets over liabilities. If liabilities exceed assets for a particular category, this results in
a negative net position. In 2019, the Agency‘s overall net position of $3.4 million increased by $.9 million from
the prior year. The main factors contributing to the net increase were:
•

The unrestricted portion of net position comprises reserves whose use is not externally restricted but
which may be reserved for specific uses through the Agency’s financial policies and budget (both
approved the Agency’s Board). The negative $2.0 million balance in this category means that liabilities
exceed assets. The primary reasons for this are the recognition of the Agency’s projected portion of the
state’s net unfunded pension plan along with post-employment benefits liabilities, a combined negative
total of $8.0 million. The overall unrestricted net position increased $.9 million in FY19 primarily due to
the increase (less negative) in the pension reserve and to an increase in the interest income reserve of
$326,172 ($210,886 earned interest plus $115,286 increase in unrealized gain in market value of
investments) in the “Other Unrestricted” category.

•

The restricted portion of net position includes reserves which are restricted by external parties (e.g.
grantors) or by state or federal law. This includes grants and contracts from federal, state and local
governments, compliance fee program reserves governed by state statutes, and contracts that provide
restricted funds to the Agency. The restricted portion of net position decreased $25,247 due, for the
most part, to reductions in the fee programs reserves (restricted) as expenses exceeded revenues for
the operating permit program.

•

Other items to note were the decrease in the civil penalties reserve (previously collected) of $113,147
due to lower collections combined with spending from the reserve and the decrease in the legal reserve
of $85,228 as the result of incurred legal expenses ($304,717).
TABLE 5
NET POSITION - RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
Net Investment in Capital Assets

$

Fee Program Reserves
State Diesel Grant
Other Restricted Reserves
Restricted
Supplemental Income Reserve
Civil Penalty Reserve
Equipment Reserve
Employer Retirement Reserve
General Reserve
General Legal Reserve
Unemployment Reserves
Other Post Employment Benefits Reserve
Pension Reserve
Other Unrestricted
Unrestricted
Net Position

$

2019
647,669

$

2018
599,646 $

4,320,100
145,365
263,998
4,729,463

4,474,532
145,365
134,813
4,754,710

2,683,969
1,233,064
180,206
265,122
494,808
161,313
183,558
(4,278,646)
(3,740,024)
843,819
(1,972,811)

2,681,338
1,346,211
171,980
265,122
494,808
246,542
192,332
(4,135,707)
(4,739,643)
598,647
(2,878,371)

3,404,321 $

$
$
$
$

2,475,985 $

Change
48,023
(154,432)
129,185
(25,247)
2,631
(113,147)
8,226
(85,228)
(8,774)
(142,939)
999,619
245,172
905,560
928,336

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
In 2019, the Agency had total revenues of $12.3 million (Graph 1). $9.2 million, or 74%, of the total is from
operating revenues (charges for services, supplemental income and other operating revenues) and $3.1 million,
or 26%, is from non-operating revenues (grants, contracts, civil penalty collections, and interest income). While
the Agency has annually renewing federal and state grants of about $1.8 million, non-recurring state and federal
grants that support specific pollution reduction projects have decreased in recent years.
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In Table 6, we compare the 2019 operating and non-operating revenues and expenses to the prior year. On an
overall basis, the net position of the Agency increased by $.9 million. Total operating revenues increased $.2
million mainly due to the $.1 million increase in charges for services (asbestos and registration fees) and to the
$.1 million increase in supplemental income. Total operating expenses increased $.7 million due mainly to the
reduction in pension expense (the Agency’s portion of the state’s net pension liability decreased). Nonoperating revenues (net of non-operating expenses) increased slightly by $.2 million due mainly to investment
revenues (see Table 8).

Page 20

TABLE 6
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
2019
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Supplemental Income (Per Capita)
Other Operating Revenues (Clean Cities Coalition)
Miscellaneous Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Expenses
Other Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

5,772,016 $
3,375,444
37,200
1,597
9,186,257

5,617,571 $
3,273,285
46,200
1,446
8,938,501

6,650,703
2,354,936
9,005,639

6,858,684
1,499,194
8,357,878

692,652

529,332

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Surplus (Deficit)
Effect of OPEB and Pension Liabilities
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION, Beginning

$

TOTAL NET POSITION, Ending

2018

873,269

1,109,956

55,067
928,336

(2,168,285)
(1,058,329)

2,475,985

3,534,314 $

3,404,321 $

2,475,985

Change
154,445
102,160
(9,000)
151
247,755

(207,981)
855,742
647,762
163,320
(236,687)
2,223,352
1,986,665

(1,058,329)
928,336

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Charges for Services (Operating Revenues)
Charges for services include compliance fee programs for regulated pollution sources. With the exception of the
asbestos program, these are regulated by the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and their fees are restricted
for use in funding the costs of their respective programs. The Agency’s financial policies reserve the use of
each of these fee programs’ revenues for the costs of that program. In Table 7, we compare charges for
services for 2019 and 2018. While there were no changes in the fee structures for these programs, charges for
services increased $154,445 during 2019 due to increased asbestos removal fee permits issued and increased
registration fees (increase in the number of sources in a specific fee category). In addition, bad debt expense
related to the current year billings decreased. Notice of construction activity decreased slightly from the
previous year – these permits generally flow with the economy as pollution sources increase or decrease
capacity.
TABLE 7
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
2019
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Registration Fees
Bad Debt - Registration Fees
Operating Permit Fees
Notice of Construction Fees
Asbestos Fees
Total Charges for Services

$

$

2,935,030 $
(12,625)
1,591,662
567,039
690,910
5,772,016 $

2018
2,898,475
(95,350)
1,586,360
578,961
649,125
5,617,571

Change
$

36,555
82,725
5,302
(11,922)
41,785
154,445

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Supplemental Income (Operating Revenues)
Through the Washington State Clean Air Act, the Agency can charge the four-county jurisdictions a per capita
fee which supplements funding from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State Department of
Ecology (the biennial state and federal core grants) for monitoring, public education, program support, technical
and business assistance, and administration. In 2019, the per capita fee was $.83 (a one-cent increase from
2018) and the four-county population increased 2.1%. This resulted in total supplemental income (per capita) of
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$3.4 million, a 3% increase from the prior year (Table 6). As approved by the Agency’s Board of Directors, the
total assessment was apportioned to the four-county jurisdictions based 50% on population and 50% on
property tax valuations.
Miscellaneous (Operating Revenues)
Miscellaneous Operating Revenues (Table 6) of $1,535 in 2019 included reimbursements, public disclosure
fees, and jury duty fees. This was about the same as 2018.
Operating Expenses
Graph 2 displays the expense components of operating expenses in 2019 relative to 2018. Total
operating expenses in 2019 were $9.0 million, a $.6 million increase from the prior year amount of $8.4 million.
Personnel expenses, consisting of wages and benefits, decreased $.2 million. Wages expenses increased $.2
million as the result of filling open inspection and engineering positions (operating expenses) and cost-of-living
adjustments in the range of 3.1% to 3.75%; however, benefits expense (that include adjustments to pension
expense) decreased $.4 million due to decreased pension expense.
Professional services and work plans (primarily grant pass-through expenditures) increased $.7 million - this
increase was due mainly to a $.2 million increase in temporary help services (to cover open positions in the
process of recruitment), a $.3 million increase in legal professional fees (to address litigation) and a $.2 million
increase for consulting services (Clean Fuels Standard analyses).
The rent, facilities, and insurance expenses increased $.1 million due to the purchase of additional computers to
replace aging devices, scheduled rent increases per the Agency’s office lease, and increased depreciation due
to equipment purchases made in 2019; in addition, the administrative overhead offset to this category
decreased due to the decline in non-recurring federal grants.
Other operating expenses increased $49,355 mainly due to software purchases, increased travel and training,
and increased telephone expenses (expanded the voice/data bandwidth for internet services).
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Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
In Table 8, we compare non-operating revenues (expenses) – these are comprised of state and federal grants,
contract revenues, civil penalty collections, and investment revenues along with their related expenses.
TABLE 8
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
As of June 30, 2019 and 2018
(In whole dollars)
2019
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal and State Grant Revenues
$
2,355,922 $
Contract Revenues
85,016
Civil Penalty Collections
392,145
Investment Revenues, net of Unrealized/Realized Gains/Losses
326,172
Subtotal - Non-Operating Revenues
3,159,255
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Workplan Expenses
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Subtotal - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

(1,206,049)
(286,695)
(656,584)
(317,274)
(2,466,603)
$

692,652 $

2018

Change

2,870,905
17,853
469,429
76,456
3,434,643

(514,983)
67,163
(77,284)
249,716
(275,388)

(1,258,862)
(418,541)
(857,016)
(370,891)
(2,905,311)

52,813
131,846
200,432
53,617
438,708

529,332 $

163,320

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

Total non-operating revenues decreased by $.3 million due mainly to the decrease in one-time federal and state
grant funding for specific emissions reductions projects.
Contract revenues increase slightly due mainly to an electric vehicle study contract with the Washington
Department of Transportation.
Civil penalty collections decreased $77,284 in 2019 – these collections are not planned or budgeted and the
Agency’s financial policies govern how these funds are spent. As per our financial policies, civil penalty
expenditures are funded by collections from prior fiscal years.
Net investment revenues increased $.2 million from 2018. Half of this increase was due to an unrealized gain in
the market value of invested reserves in the King County Investment Pool; in addition, the investment yield for
the King County Investment Pool as well as the balances invested in the pool increased resulting in increased
interest income.
Total non-operating expenses decreased $.4 million as a result of the decrease in grants and grant-related
contracts and their related work plan pass-through expenditures and to the adjustments to pension expense.
Financial Contact
The Agency’s financial statements are designed to provide users with a general overview of the Agency’s
financial performance as well as to be accountable to the public, funders and partners. If you have a question
about the report, please contact the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency, Attention: Finance, 1904 Third Avenue,
Suite 105, Seattle, WA 98101 or email (finance@pscleanair.org).
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MCAG No. 1024

PUGET SOUND CLEAN AIR AGENCY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30, 2019
(In whole dollars)

2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable (Net)
Prepaids
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Deposits (Office Lease)
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Equipment & Leasehold Improvements
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net)
Total Non-Current Assets

$

10,150,855
1,566,793
121,477
11,839,124
42,654
1,429,992
(782,323)
647,669
690,323

TOTAL ASSETS

12,529,447

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows related to Pensions
Deferred Outflows - Other Post-Employment Benefits
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

930,316
60,392
990,708

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll Liabilities
Compensated Absences and Excess Compensation
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Other Post Employment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Total Non-Current Liabilities

299,994
31,889
701,955
728
1,034,567
71,889
3,743,649
3,135,057
6,950,596

TOTAL LIABILITIES

7,985,163

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows - Other Post-Employment Benefits
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

1,535,282
595,389
2,130,671

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted (grant, legal, and contract requirements)
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

647,669
4,729,463
(1,972,811)
3,404,321

$

Totals may not add due to rounding
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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MCAG No. 1024

PUGET SOUND CLEAN AIR AGENCY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the period July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019
(In whole dollars)

2019
OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for Services, net of bad debt expense
Supplemental Income (Per Capita)
Other Operating Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenues
Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Work Plans
Professional Services
Software Purchases & Maintenance
Repairs and Maintenance
Operating Expenses, Supplies and Printing
Rent, Utilities and Insurance
Travel, Training and Meeting Expenses
Telephone and Postage
Legal Expenses
Taxes and Bank Charges
Non-Capitalized Assets (under $5,000)
(Gain)/Loss on Asset Disposal
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Surplus (Deficit)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal and State Grant Revenues
Contract Revenues
Civil Penalty Collections
Investment Revenues, net of Unrealized
and Realized Gains/Losses
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Workplan Expenses
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Surplus (Deficit)
Net Effect of Pension and OPEB
Change in Net Position
Total Net Position - Beginning
Total Net Position - Ending

$

5,772,016
3,375,444
37,200
1,597
9,186,257
5,188,024
1,462,679
105,003
951,731
41,840
43,329
51,741
639,198
152,943
57,960
22,197
82,677
91,743
(8,226)
122,800
9,005,639
180,617

2,355,922
85,016
392,145
326,172
(1,206,049)
(286,695)
(656,584)
(317,274)
692,652
873,269
55,067
928,336
2,475,985
3,404,321

Totals may not add due to rounding
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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MCAG No. 1024
PUGET SOUND CLEAN AIR AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
(In whole dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

9,124,561

Payment to suppliers

(2,302,525)

Payment to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(7,191,442)
(369,405)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Non-operating revenues (expenses), net of non-cash adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

232,764
232,764

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

179,951
179,951

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities

210,886
210,886

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

254,195

Balances - beginning of the year
Balances - end of year

9,896,660
10,150,855

The notes to the financials are an integral part of this statement
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Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Fiscal Year 2019 – July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Puget Sound Clean Air Agency (the agency) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The agency uses the revenue and expenditure classifications contained in the Budgeting
Accounting and Reporting System (BARS) manual. The manual is prescribed by the State Auditor’s Office
under the authority of Washington State law, Chapter 43.09 RCW. The significant accounting policies are
described below.
A. Reporting Entity
The Agency was incorporated on June 23, 1967 and operates under the laws of the State of Washington
applicable to a municipal corporation. The Agency is a special purpose district and provides pollution
control services. There are no component units included in the Agency’s financial reporting.
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The Agency uses the Budgeting, Accounting, and Reporting System (BARS) manual prescribed by the
State Auditor for a general guideline. The financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.
The Agency reports the financial activities of the Agency as one proprietary fund. This election was made
after reviewing materials from the Washington state auditor and after considering the financial reporting
options for special purpose districts.
Proprietary Fund
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that proprietary funds distinguish between
operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Revenues are classified as either “operating”,
those revenues which support specific programs and are fee-for-service, or as “non-operating”, those
revenues that are grants, membership dues or miscellaneous minor revenues that do not specifically
support a program
x

x

Operating - These incomes, expenses and cash flows are fees for services, supplemental
income related to the state Clean Air Act, contracts for services, and payments to support
specific activities or programs considered to be operating activities of the Agency. This
category includes revenues and expenses for the fee programs (asbestos, notice of
construction, registration and operating permits), supplemental income (per capita)
assessments, Western Washington Clean Cities Coalition and miscellaneous operating
activities.
Non-operating – This category includes revenues and expenses for state and federal grants,
grant-related contracts, interest income net of investment management fees, realized
gains/losses, and market value adjustments, and civil penalty collections net of related
expenses.

C. Budgetary Information
Annual appropriated budgets for the new fiscal year are adopted by the Agency’s Board of Directors for
the proprietary fund before the end of the current fiscal year. The budget process also includes a Board
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review and approval of Agency financial policies, any fee program changes, the annual per capita rate
charged and the apportionment of supplemental income assessments to the four-county jurisdictions.
Budget amendments throughout the fiscal year are approved by the Board as deemed appropriate and
are enacted through a Board resolution.
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Agency policy is to invest all temporary cash surpluses and reserves. Cash and Cash Equivalents
consist of the Agency’s cash and investments held in the King County Investment Pool (Pool) and a
small amount of petty cash. King County acts as the Agency’s treasurer and invests all temporary
cash surpluses. At June 30, 2019, the treasurer was holding a fair value amount of $10,265,446 in
investments of reserves. The amount included as Cash and Cash Equivalents on the Statement of
Net Position, and as Net Cash on the Statement of Cash Flows, is the booked amount of $10,150,855
– the difference is due mainly to outstanding uncleared checks and the timing of interest
earned/received. See Note 2 for the detail of investments and the reconciliation between the fair
value and the booked amounts.
In 2019, interest earnings and investment loss recaptures were allocated to the interest income
reserve – the excess over a balance of $28k (reserved for investment losses) can be used, with
Board approval, for unforeseen one-time non-personnel expenditure needs.
2. Receivables
Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals, companies, governments or
other organizations for goods or services, including amounts owed for which billings have been
prepared but the cash has not been received. Receivables related to the Registration Fee program
are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts that is adjusted at each fiscal year-end
(based on collection trends). (See Note 3).
3. Capital Assets
The Agency uses GAAP accounting and capitalizes all long-lived assets valued at greater than
$5,000 with a useful life greater than one year. Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their applicable useful lives. (See Note 4).
4. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
The Agency reported deferred outflows and inflows related to the implementation of GASB 68 and
GASB 75 for pension and post-employment benefits liabilities. These are reported separately on the
financial statements (see Notes 6 and 7 for additional information).
5. Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable represents goods and services received as of June 30, 2019, for which payments
have not yet been made. (See Note 5).
6. Compensated Absences and Excess Compensation Liabilities
Compensated absences are earned and untaken absences for which employees may be paid, such
as vacation, compensatory leave, and sick leave.
Excess compensation, for members of the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Plan 1, is a
portion of compensation used for pension benefit calculation for which the extra benefit derived must
be paid by the Agency rather than by the retirement system.
Vacation leave may be accumulated up to twice the employee’s annual accrual days. Vacation
accrual in excess of twice the employee’s annual accrual is paid out in cash after the end of each
fiscal year. Upon separation from employment, the employee receives payment for any unused
vacation. Sick leave may be accumulated indefinitely. An employee separated from service with the
Agency due to death, retirement, or disability is compensated in an amount equal to thirty-three and
one-third percent of any unused sick leave but not to exceed four hundred hours.
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Vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time are accrued at 100% of the total estimated liability as of
the fiscal year end. The accrued liability is reviewed and adjusted monthly. At the end of fiscal year
2019, the total current and non-current Compensated Absences and Excess Compensation Liability
was $773,844 (see Note 11 for additional information).
7. Other Accrued Liabilities
These accounts consist of accrued wages and accrued employee benefits.
8. Short- and Long-Term Debt
The Agency has no general, revenue, or assessment short or long-term debt.
9. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary
net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington State
Department of Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value (see Note 6).
10. Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released accounting standards for public
postemployment benefit plans other than pension (OPEB) under GASB 75. The OPEB liability,
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources, and the OPEB expense are reflected in the
financial statements (see Note 7).
11. Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position
The restricted portion of net position represents amounts restricted by external entities such as state
legislation, state or federal grantor agreements, and contracts between the Agency and other external
entities. Unrestricted net position includes reserves that are set aside per the Agency’s financial
policies (see Note13).
12. Prior Period Adjustments
There are no adjustments related to prior periods.

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Under the requirements of the Washington State Clean Air Act, one county within our four-county jurisdiction
(King, Pierce, Kitsap and Snohomish Counties) is to act as the Agency’s treasurer. The Agency has entered
into a formal interlocal agreement with the Agency to have all of its funds, not required for immediate
expenditure, to be invested in the King County Investment Pool (“Pool”). The Pool is guided by the following
principles:
1. The primary objective of the Pool’s investment of public funds is to safeguard investment principal.
2. The secondary objective is to maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure that funds are available to meet daily
cash flow requirements.
3. The third consideration is to achieve a reasonable yield consistent with these objectives.
The Pool is administered by the King County Treasury Operations Section as an external investment pool.
For investment purposes, the county pools the cash balances of county funds and participating component
units, and allows for participation by other legally separate entities such as special districts, for which the
county is the ex officio treasurer, and public authorities. The external portion of the KCIP (the portion that
belongs to special districts and public authorities other than component units) is reported in an Investment
Trust Fund. It is the county policy to invest all county funds in the Pool.
All securities are reported at fair value and reports are prepared monthly and distributed to all Pool
participants. The Pool values participants’ shares using an amortized cost basis. Monthly income is
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distributed to participants based on their relative participation during the period. Income is calculated based
on realized investment gains and losses, interest income based on stated rates (both paid and accrued), and
the amortization of discounts and premiums on a straight-line basis. Income is reduced by the contractually
agreed upon fees. This method differs from the fair value method used to value investments in the financial
statements because the amortized cost method is not designed to distribute to participants all unrealized
gains and losses due to changes in the fair values. The net change in fair values of the investments is
reported as an increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the statement of net position.
As of June 30, 2019, the Agency investments (holding amount and fair value) in the Pool were the following:
Investment Type

Fair Value

Effective
Duration

$ 10,265,446

.90 Years

Holding Amount

King County Investment Pool

$

10,225,278

Table 1 below shows investments (holding amount) in the King County Investment Pool (“Pool”) by type of
investment for fiscal year-end 2019 and 2018. While holdings in U.S. Agency Securities and Repurchase
Agreements decreased, investments in Treasury Securities, Corporate Notes and the Local Government
Investment Pool (Washington State) increased. All investments are compliant with Pool requirements.
Impaired investments, set aside since 2008, are declining each year as payouts are received and/or
settlements received.
Table 2 shows the conversion from book value to market value at year-end for 2019 and 2018:
Table 1- Note 2

June 30, 2019

Portfolio - Distribution

%

U.S. Agency Securities

June 30, 2018

Holdings

%

Holdings

25.25%

2,579,967

36.40%

3,643,721

Commercial Paper

4.00%

409,029

4.00%

400,409

U.S. Agency Mortgage-backed Securities

0.05%

4,944

0.10%

10,010

Repurchase Agreements

1.49%

151,851

2.20%

220,225

Treasury Securities

38.34%

3,917,584

36.60%

3,663,742

Corporate Notes

15.70%

1,604,024

14.20%

1,421,452

Local Government Investment Pool

15.17%

1,549,376

6.50%

650,664

100.00%

10,216,776

100.00%

10,010,223

Subtotal - Unimpaired Investments
Impaired Investments (Commercial Paper)
Total Investments Held in the King
County Pool

8,503

28,230

$ 10,225,278

$

10,038,453

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

At June 30, 2019 total investments (book value) were $10,225,278, a 1.9% increase from the prior year. This
was due to the combination of higher interest earnings on reserves in the Pool and higher per capita revenues
(2.1% increase in population in our four-county jurisdiction and a $.01 increase in the rate).
At the end of the fiscal year, the Agency also recorded unrealized gains and losses in the unimpaired and
impaired investments based on investment fair value data provided by the Treasurer (King County). Table 2
shows the change in the fair value of investments as of June 30, 2019 compared to the prior year:
Table 2 - Note 2
Fair Value of Investments
Unimpaired Investments

Fair Value

10,216,776

100.42%

$ 10,259,686

8,503

67.75%

Book Value
$

Impaired Investments
Total Investments

FY19
Fair Value
Ratio

$

10,225,278

5,761
$ 10,265,446

Book Value
$

10,010,223
12,685

$

10,022,908

FY18
Fair Value
Ratio

Fair Value

99.29% $

9,939,150
8,640

68.11%
$

9,947,790

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

The total fair value of investments increased 22% from the prior year due to a combination of increased
investments, increased market value of the unimpaired investments and decreased fair value for the impaired
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portion of investments. The increases/decreases in fair value combined with the increase in investments
resulted in the recognition of a net unrealized gain of $115,286. This was mainly due to the increase in the
fair value ratio for unimpaired investments from 99.29% to 100.42%.
Impaired Investments
At fiscal year-end, all impaired commercial paper investments have completed enforcement events. The King
County impaired investment pool held one commercial paper asset where the impaired pool accepted an
exchange offer and is receiving the cash flows from the investment’s underlying securities. The impaired pool
also held the residual investments in one commercial paper assets that were part of completed enforcement
events, where the impaired pool accepted the cash-out option. At the end of FY19, the Agency’s share of the
impaired investment pool principal was $8,145 (maximum risk of loss) and the Agency’s fair value of these
investments at was $5,761. Per the Agency’s financial policy, we maintain an interest income reserve in the
event there are unplanned investment losses.
Interest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2019, the Pool’s average duration was .90 years. As a means of limiting its exposure to rising
interest rates, securities purchased in the Pool must have a final maturity, or weighted average life, no longer
than five years. While the Pool’s market value is calculated on a monthly basis, unrealized gains and losses
are not distributed to participants. The Pool distributes earnings monthly using an amortized cost
methodology.
Credit Risk
As of June 30, 2019, the Agency’s investment in the Pool was not rated by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization (NRSRO). In compliance with state statutes, Pool policies authorize investments in U.S.
Treasury securities, U.S. agency securities and mortgage-backed securities, corporate notes (rated at least
“A”), municipal securities (rated at least “A” by two NRSROs), commercial paper (rated at least the equivalent
of “A-1”), certificates of deposits issued by qualified public depositaries, repurchase agreements, and the
Local Government Investment Pool managed by the Washington State Treasurer’s office.
Reconciliation to Financial Statements
Table 3, below, lays out the reconciliation between the total fair value of investments held in the Pool shown
above in Table 2 and the amount of Cash and Cash Equivalents reported on the financial statements:

Table 3 - Note 2
Reconciliation to Financial Statements
Fair Value of Investments

June 30, 2019
$

10,265,446

Addback: Interest Earned but not received

19,546

Reconciliation items - timing & adjustments
Outstanding Checks - not cleared
Petty Cash
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Financial
Statements

2,853
(137,091)
100
$

10,150,855

1. Amounts may not add due to rounding

The book value (financial statement amount) increased from 2018 to 2019 for the same reasons highlighted
earlier in this note.

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Total receivables (net) at June 30, 2019 were $1.6 million, a 7% decrease from the prior year as the result of
the decrease in state and federal grants. The decrease in the allowance for doubtful accounts (registration
fees) is the result of writing off previous years’ receivables related to out-of-business sources. Each year,
Agency staffs review the collection status of fee billings and adjust the allowance for uncollectible accounts
accordingly. At June 30, 2019, the allowance for uncollectible accounts ($106,752) included only registration

Page 31

fees. Supplemental income (per capita) receivables decreased due to earlier quarterly payments by
jurisdictions.
Table 1- Note 3
Accounts Receivable
Registration Program Fees Receivable

June 30, 2019
$

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

169,150

June 30, 2018
$

(106,752)

Net Registration Program Receivables

321,385

Change
$

(280,752)

(152,235)
174,000

62,398

40,633

21,765

State/Federal Grants and Contracts Receivable

608,678

694,561

(85,883)

Supplemental Income (Per Capita) Fees Receivable

884,466

944,099

(59,633)

Operating Permit Program Fees Receivable
Other Receivables
Total Receivables (Net)

$

-

-

-

11,251

12,429

(1,178)

1,566,793

$

1,691,722

$

(124,930)

Totals may not add due to rounding

NOTE 4– CAPITAL ASSETS
Major expenses for capital assets, including major repairs that increase useful lives, are capitalized if they are
greater than $5,000. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are accounted for as expenses when
incurred while all capital assets are valued at historical cost. The original cost of operating property retired or
otherwise disposed of and the cost of installation, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation expense is charged to operations to allocate the cost of capital assets over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging from three to ten years.
Capital assets are classified in the following categories and have useful lives as shown below:

Category
Vehicles
Computers (48 month life)
Computers (36 month life)

Life (months)
120
48
36

Leasehold Improvements
Monitoring, Lab, Shop and Field
Equipment

Term of Leases
120

In fiscal year 2019, the Agency acquired $179,951 in capital assets. These purchases included capitalized
computer equipment and air monitoring equipment. At year-end 2019, total capital assets were $1,429,992
and net capital assets, after accumulated depreciation of $782,323, were $647,669, an 8% increase from the
prior year. Total depreciation expense for FY19 was $131,927 – of this total, $122,799 related to operating
expenses and $9,128 was included in non-operating expenses.
The schedule of assets and accumulated depreciation is shown below:
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Table 1- Note 4
Balance at June
30, 2018

FY19 Capital Asset Rollforward
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Vehicles
Computers
Leasehold Improvements
Monitoring Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

$

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Vehicles
Computers
Leasehold Improvements
Monitoring Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

338,565
140,185
111,551
659,741
1,250,041

Increases
$

38,522
141,428
179,951

151,556
107,934
54,563
336,342
650,396

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net

$

599,646

Decreases
$

-

32,864
17,023
11,338
70,702
131,927
$

48,023

Balance at June
30, 2019
$

184,420
124,957
65,902
407,045
782,323

-

$

338,565
178,707
111,551
801,170
1,429,992

$

647,669

1. Totals may not add due to rounding

NOTE 5 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
The accounts payable balance at fiscal year-end 2019 was $299,994, a 21.7% increase from the prior year.
The overall increase was primarily due to accrued payables at fiscal year-end for two consulting contracts and
a grant subrecipient. This is also the reason that the percentage of current payables increased from FY18 to
FY19.
Table 1- Note 5

Accounts Payable Rollforward (July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019)
Beginning
Ending
Balance July 1,
Balance June
2018
Additions
Modifications
Payments
30, 2019

Accounts Payable

$

Current
1 to 30 Days Past Due
Over 30 Days Past Due
Total Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable Aging
FY19
FY18
$
253,411 $
194,768
46,583
51,798
$
299,994 $
246,567

% Current

246,567

84%

5,018,020

2,716

(4,967,309) $

299,994

79%

Totals may not add due to rounding

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS
The following table represents the Agency’s aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the
requirements of GASB 68 for the year 2019:
Agency Pension Amounts - All Plans
June 30, 2019
Pension Liabilities

$ 3,135,057

Deferred outflow of resources

$

Deferred inflows of resources

$ 1,535,282

Pension expense/expenditures

$

930,316

(210,193)
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State Sponsored Pension Plans
Substantially all Agency full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the following
statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement Systems,
under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution retirement
plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and administration of all
public retirement systems.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State of
Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be obtained by
writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P.O. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98540-8380
Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior
Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of local
governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement programs.
PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are
defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two
percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The AFC is
the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for retirement
from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or at
age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may
receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a
survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. The plan
was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage
of covered payroll) for 2019 were as follows:
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PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates
January - August 2018
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total
September - June 2019
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer
7.49%
5.03%
0.18%
12.70%

7.52%
5.13%
0.18%
12.83%

Employee
6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

6.00%

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two
percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for Plan 2
and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid consecutive
service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for retirement with a full
benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an early
retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of age or
older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according to age for
each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at
least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
x
x

With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-towork rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a reduction
of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those who are age
55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are also
actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include duty and
non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three percent annually
and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries. PERS
2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members are vested in the
defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service if 12 months of that
service are earned after age 44.
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and investment
earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon joining
membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by statute, Plan 3
required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15 percent with a choice
of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3 members are
immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include a
component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18
percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed
as a percentage of covered payrolls) for 2019 were as follows:
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PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates
January - August 2018
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total
September - June 2019
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total

Employer
7.49%
5.03%
0.18%
12.70%

7.52%
5.13%
0.18%
12.83%

Employee
7.38%

Varies
7.38%

7.41%

Varies
7.41%

The Agency’s actual PERS plan contributions were $321,823 to PERS Plan 1 and $472,928 to PERS Plan
2/3 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2018 with a valuation date of June 30, 2017. The actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study
and the 2015 Economic Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2017 actuarial valuation
report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2018. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2017, to June 30, 2018, reflecting each plan’s
normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments.
x
x
x

Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation
Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.
Investment rate of return: 7.4%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled Table,
published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and recognized future
improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality rates are
applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to receive additional mortality
improvements in each future year throughout his or her lifetime.
There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.
x Lowered the valuation interest rate from 7.70% to 7.50% for all systems except LEOFF 2. For
LEOFF 2 the valuation interest rate was lowered from 7.50% to 7.40%.
x Lowered the assumed general salary growth from 3.75% to 3.50% for all systems.
x Lowered assumed inflation from 3.00% to 2.75% for all systems.
x Modified how the valuation software calculates benefits paid to remarried duty-related death
survivors of LEOFF 2 members.
x Updated the trend that the valuation software uses to project medical inflation for LEOFF 2 survivors
of a duty-related death, and for certain LEOFF 2 medical-related duty disability benefits.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent.
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To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.5 percent long-term discount rate to
determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. (All plans use 7.5 percent
except LEOFF 2, which has assumed 7.4 percent). Consistent with the long-term expected rate of return, a
7.4 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the test. Contributions from
plan members and employers are assumed to continue being made at contractually required rates (including
PERS 2/3, PSERS 2, SERS 2/3, and TRS 2/3 employers, whose rates include a component for the PERS 1,
and TRS 1 plan liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return of 7.4 percent was used to determine the total liability.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was determined
using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary (OSA) reviewed
the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual investment
returns, and considered capital market assumptions and simulated expected investment returns provided by
the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the capital market assumptions and their
target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over various time horizons.
Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component used
to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.
Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

% Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return
Arithmetic
1.70%
4.90%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/Asset
The table below presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4 percent) or 1percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate.

Sensitivity to Changes
PERS 1
PERS 2/3

1% Decrease
(6.4%)
$ 2,612,021
$ 4,618,054

Current Discount
Rate
(7.4%)
$
2,125,430
$
1,009,626

1% Increase
(8.4%)
$
$

1,703,944
(1,948,882)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Page 37

At June 30, 2019, the Agency reported a total pension liability of $3,135,057 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liabilities as follows:

Agency Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2019
PERS 1

$ 2,125,430

PERS 2/3
Total

1,009,626
$ 3,135,057

At June 30, the Agency’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows (only
report applicable plans):
Agency Proportionate Share of Proportionate
Share
Washington State Pension
Liability
6/30/171
PERS 1
0.053544%
PERS 2/3
0.066762%
1. Used for the Agency's FY18 financial reports
2. Used for the Agency's FY19 financial reports

Proportionate
Share
6/30/182
0.047591%
0.059132%

Change in
Proportion
-0.005953%
-0.007630%

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30 are
used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts
reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans except LEOFF
1.
Pension Expense
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Agency recognized pension expense as follows:

Agency Pension Expense
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
PERS 1
$ (107,508)
PERS 2/3
(102,684)
Total
$ (210,193)
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At June 30, 2019, the Agency reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
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PERS 1

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments

(84,463)

Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

321,823
$

PERS 2/3

321,823

123,754

Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$

(176,767)

-

(619,553)

11,811

(287,331)

-

(367,167)

472,928
$

Total Plans 1,2 & 3

(84,463)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments

Total

$

608,493

$

(1,450,819)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources
of Resources
$

123,754

$

(176,767)

$

-

$

(704,017)

$

11,811

$

(287,331)

$

-

$

(367,167)

$

794,751

$

$

930,315

$

(1,535,283)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Agency’s contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense as follows (prepare a separate table for each plan):
Year ended June 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

PERS 2/3
(175,094)
(269,254)
(434,469)
(195,674)
(107,223)
$ (133,541)

$
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NOTE 7 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLANS
Under GASB 75, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released accounting standards for
public postemployment benefit plans other than pension (OPEB). The Agency’s multiple-employer plan,
Washington State Public Employees Benefit Board (PEBB), is not administered through a qualifying trust and
there is no special funding situation (medical and dental benefits are not pre-funded). GASB 75 requires a
liability for OPEB obligations, known as the total OPEB liability, to be recognized in the financial statements of
participating employers.
Plan Description
Eligible retirees and spouses are entitled to subsidies associated with postemployment medical benefits
provided through the Public Employee Benefits Board (PEBB). The PEBB was created within the Washington
State Health Care Authority to administer medical, dental, and life insurance plans for public employees and
retirees. Puget Sound Clean Air Agency provides medical, dental, and voluntary long-term disability
insurance to its employees through the Washington State Public Employees Benefit Board (PEBB), a multiemployer defined benefit plan. Agency employees who end public employment are eligible to continue PEBB
insurance coverage as a retiree if they retire under the public employees’ retirement system and are vested in
that system.
The OPEB relationship between PEBB employers and their employees and retirees is not formalized in a
contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in accordance with a substantive plan. A
substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the employers and plan members. This
understanding is based on communications between the employers and plan members and the historical
pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs.
The Office of the State Actuary, a department within the primary government of the State of Washington,
issues a publicly available Other Post-Employment Benefits Actuarial Valuation Report. The Other PostEmployment Benefits Actuarial Valuation Report may be obtained by writing to: Office of the State Actuary,
PO Box 40914, Olympia, Washington 98504-0914 or it may be downloaded from the Office of the State
Actuary website at http://leg.wa.gov/osa.
The subsidies provided by PEBB and valued in this report include the following:
-Explicit medical subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses
-Implicit medical subsidy
-Implicit dental subsidy
The explicit subsidies are monthly amounts paid per post-65 retiree and spouse. As of the valuation date, the
explicit subsidy for post-65 retirees and spouses is the lesser of $150 or 50% of the monthly premiums. As of
January 1, 2019, the subsidy will be increased to $168 per month. The retirees and spouses currently pay the
premium minus $150 when the premium is over $300 per month and pay half the premium when the premium
is lower than $300.
The implicit medical subsidy is the difference between the total cost of medical benefits and the premiums.
For pre-65 retirees and spouses, the retiree pays the full premium amount, but that amount is based on a pool
that includes active employees. Active employees will tend to be younger and healthier than retirees on
average, and therefore can be expected to have lower average health costs. For post-65 retirees and
spouses, the retiree does not pay the full premium due to the subsidy discussed above.
GASB 75 requires the projection of the total cost of benefit payments to be based on claims costs or ageadjusted premiums approximating claims costs. Because claims costs are expected to vary by age and sex,
we have used claims costs that vary by age and sex. The projection of retiree premiums is based on current
amounts for the retirees’ share of the premium, projected with the medical trend assumption.
We also include implicit subsidies for dental coverage.
We do not include any subsidies for life insurance benefits. It is our understanding that the subsidized life
insurance benefit was removed effective January 1, 2017 and replaced with a benefit coverage that is fully
paid by the retiree.

Page 40

Before 2017, these subsidies were not projected and accounted for under accrual basis accounting. Accrual
accounting is meant to match the timing between when something occurs and when it is accounted for. In this
case, it is meant to match the expense to the year in which the benefits are earned by the member.
Pay-as-you-go funding occurs when an employer chooses to contribute (pay) for benefits only when they
occur or become due (after retirement). Before 2017, this cost was expensed as the Agency paid the current
year's subsidies. However, the unfunded liability, which is the difference between what the Agency accrues
(assuming on-going future payments) and what the Agency currently pays, was growing and was not
accounted for under the pay-as-you-go method. The Agency funds the implicit and explicit subsidies on a
pay-as-you-go basis, meaning that the Agency pays these costs as they occur or become due. There are no
assets accumulating in a qualifying trust.
Annual OPEB Expense and Net OPEB Obligation
For the 2019 expense and OPEB liability reporting, the valuation date is July 1, 2017. This is the date as of
which the census data is gathered and the actuarial valuation is performed. The measurement date is June
30, 2018. This is the date as of which the total OPEB liability is determined. GASB 75 allows a lag of up to
one year between the measurement date and the reporting date. No adjustment is required between the
measurement date and the reporting date. The reporting date is June 30, 2019 or the Agency’s fiscal year
end. The following table represents the aggregate OPEB amounts for all plans subject to the requirements of
GASB 75 for the reporting year FY2019:

Aggregate OPEB Amounts - All Plans
Reporting
Period July 1,
2018 - June 30,
2019
OPEB Liabilities
$
3,743,649
OPEB Assets
$
Deferred outflows of resouces
$
60,392
Deferred inflows of resource
$
(595,388)
OPEB Expense
$
203,331
The total OPEB liability is also reported as of the beginning of the measurement period. As permitted by
GASB 75, in this transition year, this calculation is based on a roll backward of the actuarial valuation results,
with an adjustment made to the discount rate.
Total OPEB expense for the year is made up of service cost, or the portion of the actuarial present value of
expected benefit payments that is attributed to the valuation year, interest on the total liability, the effects of
plan changes, the recognition of economic/demographic gains or losses and the recognition of assumption
changes or inputs. The components of OPEB expense for FY19 are shown below:
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OPEB Expense

Measurement Period
(July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018)
Service cost
Interest on total OPEB liability
Effect of plan changes
Recognition of Deferred Inflows/Outflows of
Resources

Reporting
Period July 1,
2018 - June 30,
2019
$

160,930
137,364
-

Recognition of economic/demographic gains
or losses Recognition of assumption changes
or inputs
OPEB Expense
$

(94,963)
203,331

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, calculated based
on the discount rates below, and then projected to the measurement dates. There have been no significant
changes between the valuation date and fiscal year ends.
Total OPEB Liability

Measurement Period
(July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018)
Total OPEB liability
Covered employee payroll

Reporting
Period July 1,
2018 - June 30,
2019
$

Total OPEB liability as a % of covered
employee payroll

Valuation date
Measurement date

July 1, 2017
June 30, 2018

Discount rate
20-Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield

3.87%
3.87%

3,743,649
6,185,736
60.52%

The changes in the total OPEB liability are shown in the table below. The main reason for the increase in the
liability from the prior year is combination of service cost and interest expense (increases in the liability) were
higher than the offsetting change in assumptions or inputs.
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Changes in Total OPEB Liability
Reporting
Period July 1,
2018 - June 30,
2019
Balance at June 30, 2017 (FY2018)

$

3,701,360

Service cost

160,930

Interest on total OPEB liability

137,364

Effect of plan changes

-

Effect of economic/demographic gains or
losses

-

Effect of assumption changes or inputs

(204,917)

Expected benefit payments

(51,088)

Balance at June 30, 2018 (FY2019)

$

3,743,649

Deferred Inflow/Outflow of Resources
As of June 30, 2018, the measurement date, the deferred inflows and outflows of resources were:

Deferred Inflows/Outflow of Resources:
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions or inputs

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

-

-

(595,388)

Contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date

-

-

Total

60,392

(595,388)

60,392

Payments made subsequent to the measurement date are expected benefit payments in the year between
the measurement date and the reporting date.
Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to other postemployment benefits will be recognized in OPEB expense below. Note that additional future
deferred inflows and outflows of resources may impact these numbers:
Measurement Period Ending June 30:
2019

$

(94,963)

2020

(94,963)

2021

(94,963)

2022

(94,963)

2023

(94,963)

Thereafter

(120,573)
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Schedule of Deferred Inflow and Outflow of Resources - FY2019 Reporting Date

Measurement
Period in which
Experience
Original Amount
Arose
7/1/2017 6/30/2018

Economic or demographic (gains)
or losses

-

Original
Recognition
Period*

7/1/2016 6/30/2017

Amount
Recognized in
2018
Measurement
Period
Experience

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
Assumption changes or inputs

Balance of
Balance of
Deferred
Deferred
Inflows as of Outflows as
6/30/2018
of 6/30/2018
Measurement Measurement
Date
Date

(204,917)

7/1/20176/30/2018

8.0

(25,615)

(179,302)

-

(554,782)

7/1/2016 6/30/2017

8.0

(69,348)

(416,086)

-

(94,963)

(595,388)

-

Total

* Economic/demographic (gains) losses and assumption changes or inputs are recognized over the average remaining service life for all active and inactive
members.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At the census date of July 1, 2017 (reporting date of June 30, 2019), the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
Active employees

60

Retirees

17

Total

77

Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the agency, calculated using the discount rate of 3.87%, as
well as what the agency’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (2.87%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.87%) than the current rate.

Total June 30, 2018 OPEB Liability
(FY2019 reporting))

1% Decrease 2.87%

Discount Rate 3.87%

1% Increase 4.87%

$

$

$

4,516,893

3,743,649

3,137,468

Sensitivity to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the agency, calculated using the current healthcare cost
trend rates as well as what the agency’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates
that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rates.

1% Decrease
Total June 30, 2018 OPEB Liability
(FY2019 reporting))

$

3,062,042

Current Trend
Rate
$

3,743,649

1% Increase
$

4,638,883

Sensitivity to changes in healthcare cost trend
rates
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Funded Status and Funding Progress
In order to fund the OPEB plan, the Agency would have to establish an irrevocable trust, which means that
the Agency would no longer have control of the money put into the trust. Even if the Agency left the PEBB
program, the Agency would not be able to get the money out of the trust. As of June 30, 2019, the plan was
0% funded. See the Required Supplementary Information – OPEB after the Notes section.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required payments of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress is presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the Entry Age Actuarial Cost
Method. Under the principles of this method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each
individual included in the valuation is allocated as a level percentage of expected salary for each year of
employment between entry age (defined as age at hire) and assumed exit (until maximum retirement age).
For purposes of projecting benefits prior to the valuation date as required by the actuarial cost method, we
assumed a health cost trend equal to the ultimate health cost trend rate.
The portion of this actuarial present value allocated to a valuation year is called the normal cost. The portion
of this actuarial present value not provided for at a valuation date by the sum of (a) the actuarial value of the
assets, and (b) the actuarial present value of future normal costs is the total OPEB liability under GASB 74
and 75.
Census Date
July 1, 2017.
Valuation Date
June 30, 2018.
Measurement Date
June 30, 2018 is the measurement date for the June 30, 2019 financial reporting date.
GASB 75 permits a one-year lag between the measurement date and report date without adjustment.
Price Inflation
3.0% - Rationale: Assumption developed by the Office of the State Actuary for the Public Employees Benefits
Board (PEBB).
Healthcare Costs
The following healthcare cost assumptions used in the valuation were developed by Milliman (actuarial firm)
for use in the 2017 OPEB valuation for the PEBB program performed by the Office of the State Actuary:
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - State Sponsored Plans
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS Plan 1
As of June 30, 2019 (reporting date)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Reporting Date

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Measurement Date

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/31/2016

6/30/2015

6/31/2014

6/31/2013

0.475910%

0.053544%

0.055300%

0.056507%

0.056744%

0.055534%

2,955,841

2,858,505

3,244,993

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability
(asset)
%
Employer's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

$

2,125,430

2,540,705

2,982,223

TOTAL

$

2,125,430

2,540,705

2,982,223

2,955,841

2,858,505

3,244,993

Covered payroll (at measurement date)*

$

6,185,736

6,635,087

6,496,674

6,370,814

6,101,162

6,021,351

Employer's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage of covered
payroll

%

34.36%

38.29%

45.90%

46.40%

46.85%

53.89%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability
%

63.22%

61.24%

57.03%

59.10%

61.19%

61.19%

Notes to Schedule:
* As of measurement date; until a full 10-year trend is compiled, we are presenting information only for those years for which information is available

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - State Sponsored Plans
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS Plans 2 & 3
As of June 30, 2019 (reporting date)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Reporting Date

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Measurement Date

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/31/2016

6/30/2015

6/31/2014

6/31/2013

0.059132%

0.066762%

0.069004%

0.070816%

0.070962%

0.071028%

3,474,297

2,530,296

1,434,398

3,032,906

1,434,398

3,032,906

6,101,162

6,021,351

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability
(asset)
%
Employer's proportionate share of the net
pension liability

$

1,009,626

2,319,660

TOTAL

$

1,009,626

2,319,660

Covered payroll (at measurement date)*

$
6,185,736

6,635,087

%

16.32%

34.96%

53.48%

39.72%

23.51%

50.37%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability
%

95.77%

90.97%

85.82%

89.20%

93.29%

93.29%

Employer's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage of covered
payroll

3,474,297

6,496,674

2,530,296

6,370,814

Notes to Schedule:
* As of measurement date; until a full 10-year trend is compiled, we are presenting information only for those years for which information is available

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - State Sponsored Plans
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Employer Contributions
PERS Plan 1
For the year ended June 30, 2019 (reporting date)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Reporting Date

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Measurement Date

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/31/2016

6/30/2015

6/31/2014

6/31/2013

Statutorily or contractually required contributions $

321,823

318,115

322,085

314,911

259,704

251,166

(321,823)

(318,115)

(322,085)

(314,911)

(259,704)

(251,166)

Contributions in relation to the statutorily or
contractually required contributions*

$

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll (at measurement date)*

$

6,185,736

6,635,087

6,496,674

6,370,814

6,101,162

6,021,351

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

%

5.20%

4.79%

4.96%

4.94%

4.26%

4.17%

-

-

-

-

-

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Notes to Schedule:

* As of measurement date; until a full 10-year trend is compiled, we are presenting information only for those years for which information is available
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - State Sponsored Plans
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Employer Contributions
PERS Plans 2 & 3
For the year ended June 30, 2019 (reporting date)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Reporting Date

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Measurement Date

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/31/2016

6/30/2015

6/31/2014

6/31/2013

Statutorily or contractually required contributions $

472,928

456,272

407,775

398,356

315,450

299,770

(472,928)

(456,272)

(407,775)

(398,356)

(315,450)

(299,770)

Contributions in relation to the statutorily or
contractually required contributions*

$

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

Covered payroll (at measurement date)*

$

6,185,736

6,635,087

6,496,674

6,370,814

6,101,162

6,021,351

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

%

7.65%

6.88%

6.28%

6.25%

5.17%

4.98%

-

-

-

-

-

-

Notes to Schedule:

* As of measurement date; until a full 10-year trend is compiled, we are presenting information only for those years for which information is available

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

20XX

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Retiree Medical and Dental Benefits under the Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB)
For the year ended June 30, 2018 (plan measurement date)
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
Measurement Date --- >
Reporting Date --->
Service cost

$

Interest on total OPEB liability

6/30/2018

6/30/2017

6/30/2016

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

195,660

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

118,630

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

160,930

$

137,364

Changes of benefit terms

-

-

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Effect of Economic/demographic gains
or losses

-

-

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Effect of assumption changes or inputs
Expected benefit payments
Change

(204,917)

(554,783)

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

(51,088)

(49,589)

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

42,289

(290,081)

Total OPEB liability, beginning

$

3,701,360

$

3,991,441

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Total OPEB liability, ending

$

3,743,649

$

3,701,360

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Covered Payroll (as of measurement
date)
Total OPEB liability as a % of covered
employee payroll

6,185,736
60.52%

6,635,087
55.78%

*Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, only information for those years available is presented.
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75 to pay related benefits.
See notes to the financials - assumption changes related to the discount rate used, projected healthcare costs, significant hiring or terming of employees, and significant retirements can affect the
trends in the amounts reported for OPEB.
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Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MCAG No 1024

Schedule 16

Federal Agency
Expenditures (whole dollars)

(Pass Through Agency) Federal Program

CFDA
Number

From PassThrough
Awards

Other Award Number

From Direct
Awards

Total

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Note

Surveys, Studies, Research, Investigations, Demonstrations, and Special Purpose Activities Relating to the Clean Air Act

Environmental Protection
Agency, Office of Air and
Radiation (via
Washington State
Department of Ecology)

Surveys, Studies,
Research, Investigations,
Demonstrations, and
Special Purpose Activities
Relating To Clean Air Act

66.034

AQPM25-2017-PSCAA-00004

$

55,234

$

-

$

55,234

$

-

Environmental Protection
Agency, Office of Air and
Radiation (via
Washington State
Department of Ecology)

Surveys, Studies,
Research, Investigations,
Demonstrations, and
Special Purpose Activities
Relating To Clean Air Act

66.034

AQPM25-1924-PSCAA-00011

$

21,896

$

-

$

21,896

$

-

Environmental Protection
Agency, Office of Air and
Radiation (via
Washington State
Department of Ecology)

Surveys, Studies,
Research, Investigations,
Demonstrations, and
Special Purpose Activities
Relating To Clean Air Act

66.034

XA-01J10401

$

34,012

$

34,012

$

-

$

77,130

$

34,012

$

111,142

$

-

Total Surveys, Studies, Research, Investigations,
Demonstrations, and Special Purpose Activities
Relating to the Clean Air Act
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

1&2

1,2, & 4

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MCAG No 1024

Schedule 16

Federal Agency
Expenditures (whole dollars)

(Pass Through Agency) Federal Program

CFDA
Number

From PassThrough
Awards

Other Award Number

From Direct
Awards

Total

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Note

National Clean Diesel Emissions Reduction Program
National Clean Diesel
Emissions Reduction
Environmental Protection Program/DERA Clean
Agency, Office of Air and Diesel Funding
Radiation
Assistance Program
National Clean Diesel
Emissions Reduction
Program/DERA Clean
Diesel Funding
Assistance Program
National Clean Diesel
Emissions Reduction
Environmental Protection Program/DERA Clean
Agency, Office of Air and Diesel Funding
Radiation
Assistance Program

66.039

DE-01J26001

$

-

$

1,130

$

1,130

$

-

66.039

DE-01J53801

$

-

$

8,665

$

8,665

$

-

66.039

DE-01J40801

$

-

$

115,110

$

115,110

$

96,520

$

124,906

$

124,906

$

96,520

Total National Clean Diesel Emissions Reduction Program/DERA Clean
Diesel Funding Assistance Program

$

-

1,2, & 4

1,2,3 & 4

Performance Partnership Grants
Environmental Protection
Agency, Office of the
Administrator (via
Washington State
Performance Partnership
Department of Ecology)
Grants

66.605

Total Performance Partnership Grants
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

AQCORE-1719-PSCAA-00004

$

927,777

$

-

$

927,777

$

-

$

927,777

$

-

$

927,777

$

-

1&2

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MCAG No 1024

Schedule 16

Federal Agency
Expenditures (whole dollars)

(Pass Through Agency) Federal Program

CFDA
Number

From PassThrough
Awards

Other Award Number

From Direct
Awards

Total

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Note

Conservation Research and Development
Conservation Research
and Development/Energy
U. S. Department of Energ Efficiency EE
Conservation Research
and Development/Energy
U. S. Department of Energ Efficiency EE

81.086

DE-EE0007812

81.086
DE-EE0007402
Total Conservation Research and Development/Energy Efficiency EE

Total Federal Expenditures
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

$

-

$

-

$

38,750

$

38,750

$

-

$

-

$

56,250

$

56,250

$

-

$

215,168

$

1,220,076

$

96,520

$

1,004,907

$

17,500

$

17,500

$

-

1&2

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

MCAG NO. 1024

Schedule 16

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Fiscal Year 2019 (July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019)

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
For Federal expenditures, this schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the Puget Sound
Clean Air Agency’s financial statements. The Agency uses the accrual basis of accounting for Proprietary
funds.
NOTE 2 – PROGRAM COSTS
For Federal expenditures, the amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal
grant portion of the program costs. Entire program costs, including matching funds from the Agency or
beneficiaries, may be higher than the expenditure amounts shown on the schedule. Such expenditures
are recognized following, as applicable, whether the cost principles in the OMB circular A-87, Cost
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U. S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited
as to reimbursement.
NOTE 3 – AMOUNTS AWARDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS
The Agency Passed $67,825.38 to Subrecipients.
DE-01J40801-0

Puget Sound Harbor Vessel Replacement

$96,520

NOTE 4 – INDIRECT COST RATE
The Agency has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance and has used the Agency’s federally approved indirect rates.
The amount expended includes $23,503 claimed as an indirect cost recovery distributed as follows:

Grant No.
XA-01J10401
DE-01J53801
DE-01J40801

Title
Highway Air Toxics Impact in Chinatown
DERA School Bus Replacements
Puget Sound Harbor Vessel Engine Replacements

Indirect Rate
57.88%
61.37%
61.37%

Indirect
Cost
Recovery
$12,469.13
$ 3,295.54
$ 7,738.72
$23,503.39
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the state’s Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and serves
four-year terms.
We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.
In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.
As an elected agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available on
our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office
Public Records requests PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
Main telephone (564) 999-0950
Toll-free Citizen Hotline (866) 902-3900
Website www.sao.wa.gov

Office of the Washington State Auditor
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Exit Conference: Puget Sound Clean Air Agency
The Office of the Washington State Auditor’s vision is increased trust in government. Our mission is to provide
citizens with independence and transparent examinations of how state and local governments use public funds,
and develop strategies that make government more efficient and effective.
The purpose of this meeting is to share the results of your audit and our draft reporting. We value and appreciate
your participation.
Audit Reports
We will publish the following reports:


Financial statement and federal grant compliance audit(s) for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 - see
draft report.

Audit Highlights


We greatly appreciate Karen Houser, Nilda Rublica, Andrea King, and Angie Johnson for their assistance
throughout the audit.

Recommendations not included in the Audit Reports
Exit Items
We have provided exit recommendations for management’s consideration. Exit items address control deficiencies
or non-compliance with laws or regulation that have an insignificant or immaterial effect on the entity, or errors
with an immaterial effect on the financial statements. Exit items are not referenced in the audit report.
Communications required by audit standards
In relation to our financial statement audit report, we would like to bring to your attention:




Uncorrected misstatements in the audited financial statements are summarized on the attached schedule.
We agree with management’s representation that these misstatements are immaterial to the fair
presentation of the financial statements.
There were no material misstatements in the financial statements corrected by management during the
audit.

Finalizing Your Audit
Report Publication
Audit reports are published on our website and distributed via e-mail in an electronic .pdf file. We also offer a
subscription service that allows you to be notified by email when audit reports are released or posted to our
website. You can sign up for this convenient service at: https://portal.sao.wa.gov/SAOPortal/

Management Representation Letter
We have included a copy of representations received from management.
Audit Cost
At the entrance conference, we estimated the cost of the audit to be $21,500 and actual audit costs will
approximate that amount.
Your Next Scheduled Audit
Your next audit is scheduled to be conducted in first quarter 2020 and will cover the following general areas:





Accountability for Public Resources
Financial Statement
Federal Programs
Attestation Engagement for the Air Operating Permit Program for July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020.

The estimated cost for the next audit based on current rates is $33,930 plus travel expenses. This preliminary
estimate is provided as a budgeting tool and not a guarantee of final cost.
Working Together to Improve Government
Audit Survey
When your report is released you will receive an audit survey from us. We value your opinions on our audit
services and hope you provide feedback.
Local Government Support Team
This team provides support services to local governments through technical assistance, comparative statistics,
training, and tools to help prevent and detect a loss of public funds. Our website and client portal offers many
resources, including a client Help Desk that answers auditing and accounting questions. Additionally this team
assists with the online filing of your financial statements.
The Center for Government Innovation
The Center for Government Innovation of the Office of the Washington State Auditor is designed to offer services
specifically to help you help the residents you serve at no additional cost to your government. What does this
mean? We provide expert advice in areas like Lean, peer-to-peer networking and culture-building to help local
governments find ways to be more efficient, effective and transparent. The Center can help you by providing
assistance in financial management, cybersecurity and more. Check out our best practices and other resources
that help local governments act on accounting standard changes, comply with regulations, and respond to
recommendations in your audit. The Center understands that time is your most precious commodity as a public
servant, and we are here to help you do more with the limited hours you have. If you are interested in learning
how we can help you maximize your effect in government, call us at (360) 725-5621 or email us at
Center@sao.wa.gov.

Questions?
Please contact us with any questions about information in this document or related audit reports.
Kelly Collins, CPA, Director of Local Audit, (360) 902-0091, Kelly.Collins@sao.wa.gov
Mark Rapozo, CPA, Assistant Director of Local Audit, (360) 902-0471 Mark.Rapozo@sao.wa.gov
Joe Simmons, CPA, Audit Manager, (206) 615-0557, Joseph.Simmons@sao.wa.gov
Madeleine Frost-Shaffer, Assistant Audit Manager, (206) 263-2690, Madeleine.Frost-Shaffer@sao.wa.gov
Angela Funamori, Audit Lead, (206) 263-2858, Angela.Funamori@sao.wa.gov

Summary of Uncorrected Items

Description
Since the OPEB plan is “pay-as-you-go,” we expect to
see the OPEB liability divided between current and noncurrent portions.

Statement / Schedule
Statement of Net Position

Opinion Unit
Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

The Agency reported payments made subsequent to the
measurement date as "Net Effect of Pension and OPEB"
on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
Statement of Revenues and
in Net Position. We determined the proper reporting of
Expenses, and Changes in Net
payments made subsequent to the measurement date
Position
would be to report a deferred outflow and an adjustment
to pension expense. We would not expect to see a “Net
Effect of Pension and OBEP” reported on the statements.

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

The Agency was missing a reconciliation of net cash
flows from operating activities. With out the
reconciliation, we were unable to trace the net operating
income and the depreciation expense and any prior
Statement of Cash Flows
period adjustment affecting the calculation of net
operating income to the Proprietary Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position.

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities section The financial statement shows “non-operating revenues
(expenses), net of non-cash adjustments” as $233K
however more than $2.8 million is reported under the
operating statement. It appears the agency may be
incorrectly reporting cash flow transactions net rather
than gross.

Statement of Cash Flows

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

If applicable, the statement of cash flows should be
accompanied by information (in narrative or tabular form)
concerning any non-cash investing, capital, or financing
activities of the period that affected recognized assets or
Statement of Cash Flows
liabilities but did not result in cash flows. Since the
agency has a line item “non-operating revenues
(expenses), net of non-cash adjustments” that they have
non-cash transactions that should be disclosed.

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Note 6 – Pension Plans: The amortization table for PERS
Notes to the Financial Statement
1 is missing.

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Note 7 – OPEB: Covered Payroll was reported as
$6,185,736 and did not agree to the Actuary Report
which reported covered payroll of $6,457,159.

RSI: Schedule of Changes in Total
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
and Notes to the Financial
Statements

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Note 7 – OPEB: The PEBB is not considered a multipleemployer plan, since it is a pay as you go.

Notes to the Financial Statement

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Washington State Auditor's Office
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Summary of Uncorrected Items

Description

Statement / Schedule

Opinion Unit

Puget Sound Clean Air reported Salaries and Wages of
$1,206,049 and Employee Benefits of $286,695 as nonoperating. Per guidance in the BARS manual, these
should be reported as operating expenditures.

Statement of Revenues and
Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

We noted a variance of $4,659 for the PERS 2/3
Deferred Inflows.

Statement of Net Position

Puget Sound Clean Air Agency

Washington State Auditor's Office
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PUGET SOUND CLEAN AIR AGENCY
Notices of Construction/Notifications March 2020
King

Approved

3

Kitsap
2

Pierce
2

Snohomish
2

Mobile
0

Total
9

Notices/Notifications Approved March 1 through March 31, 2020
Date
Approved

NC#

Firm Name

3/9/20
3/18/20

11931
11854

Precision Custom Cabinets
DOT WA, North Ops Bldg.

3/18/20

11968

Corrugated
WESCO GROUP INC

3/18/20
3/18/20

11878
11950

3/23/20

11956

3/23/20

11957

3/25/20

11969

Date

Approved
3/23/20

Location

Bradken Inc.
Commencement Bay

Lynnwood

General Order ARO-1 (July 8, 2014)

Bremerton

Stainless steel passivation

Lynnwood

General Order ARO-1 (July 8, 2014)

Location
Bothell

Equipment_______________
Vapor recovery

Bremerton

US Navy Puget Sound Naval
Shipyard PSNS
WESCO GROUP INC

NC#
1540N

Spray booth
Spray booth

Tacoma
Orting

US Navy Puget Sound Naval
Shipyard PSNS

Firm Name
North Creek Chevron

Equipment ____________

Auburn
Seattle

Building addition
Modification

Chromium stripping

Notices/Notifications Received March 1 through March 31, 2020 (continued)
Date

Received
3/6/20

3/6/20
3/6/20

3/16/20

NC#
11968

Firm Name
WESCO GROUP INC

Location
Lynnwood

Equipment
_________
General Order ARO-1 (July 8, 2014)

11915

US Navy Puget Sound Naval
Shipyard PSNS

Bremerton

Generators

11969
11970

3/19/20
3/19/20

11971
11972

3/27/20
3/30/20

11975
11973

3/24/20
3/26/20

11976
11978

WESCO GROUP INC
CPM Oldcastle

Lynnwood
Frederickson

General Order ARO-1 (July 8, 2014)
Spray booth

NW Auto Collision Center Inc.
Premier Building Systems

Puyallup
Puyallup

Spray booth
Spray booth

Boeing Commercial Airplane
Instant Autobody Inc.

Auburn
Bothell

Two mills
Spray Room

Costco Gasoline No. TBD
Loren Sinner Cedar Company Inc.

Lake Stevens
Vashon

-1-

Vapor recovery
Modification

Notices/Notifications Received March 1 through March 31, 2020
Notifications
Date

Received
3/9/20

NC#
1546N

Firm Name
Mukilteo Bluebird 76

Location
Everett

Equipment
Vapor recovery

3/11/20
3/17/20

1548N
1550N

Stadium Chevron (GRB Inc.)
Admiral Chevron

Bothell
Seattle

Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery

3/9/20
3/10/20

3/17/20
3/19/20

3/20/20
3/23/20

3/26/20
3/27/20

1547N
1545N

1551N
1558N
1549N
1557N
1554N
1553N

Chevron #9-4511 (Richmond Beach)
Cottage Grove Mart

Shell Barnecut's Admiral Way Service
Chevron, Wayne's Service Center
7-Eleven #38806
76 #2611061

Rose's Gas & Grocery
ARS Shell Meeker

Seattle
Seattle

Seattle
Burien
Kent
Seattle
Everett
Kent

-2-

Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery

Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery
Vapor recovery

____________

CONTRACTS INITIATED IN FY19
as of 4/9/20
NUMBER

VENDOR/RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION/PROJECT

START DATE

EXPIRES

AMOUNT

2019-001

All Phase Comm LLC

Support and Maintenance of the Agency's Internal
ShoreTel Telephone System

10/23/18

10/22/19

$5,248

2019-002

North Kitsap Fire & Rescue

Air Quality Monitoring Station

10/01/18

02/28/19

$500

2019-003

Milliman, Inc.

Milliman Actuarial Services (GASB 75)

08/20/18

11/30/18

2019-004

Argosy LP dba Argosy Cruises

Argosy LP Engine Replacement Project

09/07/18

2019-005

Kitsap Regional Library

Air Quality Monitoring Station

2019-006

Cogent Communications

2019-007
2019-007-1
2019-007-2

FUND SOURCE

PROJECT MGR/
CONTACT

All Agency

Andy Tudhope

Monitoring Dept

Matt Harper

$15,000

All Agency

Karen Houser

06/30/19

$40,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

11/01/18

06/30/19

$1,200

All Agency

Matt Harper

Internet Services

10/05/18

10/05/20

$1570/month

All Agency

Andy Tudhope

ICF Incorporated, L.L.C.

Puget Sound Regional Transportation Fuels Analysis

11/1/2018

6/30/2019
8/30/2019
9/30/2019

$215,000

Per Capita

Phil
Schwartzendruber

2019-008

Sebris Busto James

Legal advice regarding employment and personnel
matters.

10/31/18

12/31/19

$45,000

All Agency

Jennifer Dold

2019-009

American Construction Company

TERMINATED

TBD

10/31/19

$28,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

2019-010
2019-010-1

Harley Marine Services, Inc.

"Kestrel" Marine Engine Replacement Project

03/26/2019
7/2/2019

8/30/2019
12/31/2019

$46,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

2019-011

Western Towboat Co.

"Westrac" Marine Engine Replacement Project

01/02/19

10/31/19

$36,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

2019-012
2019-012-1

Crowley Marine Services, Inc.

"Protector" and "Guard" Marine Engine Replacement
Project

04/04/19

2/28/2019
12/31/2020

$140,000
$180,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

2019-013

Island Tug and Barge

"Viking" Marine Engine Replacement Project

01/02/19

08/30/19

$56,000

EPA Grant No. DE - 01J40801-0

Beth Carper

2019-014

Carol Olsby & Associates, Inc.

Two half-day employee & manager focus group
sessions.

10/08/18

12/15/18

$5,000

All Agency

Marilyn Repinski

2019-015

ASR Storage

Monitoring Rental Storage space for North Kitsap
Study

TBD

Monthly

$124/month

Core grants, 103 grant

Matt Harper

2019-016

Various

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Recycling MOA

11/07/18

06/30/19

NA

No funds exchanged

Gail Pethe

2019-017
2019-017-01

Calbag Metals

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Recycling MOA

11/14/2018
05/29/2019

6/30/2019
07/31/2021

NA

No funds exchanged

Gail Pethe

2019-018
2019-018-01

Recycling Depot

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Recycling MOA

11/14/2018
06/18/2019

6/30/2019
07/31/2021

NA

No funds exchanged

Gail Pethe

2019-019
2019-019-01

Schnitzer Steel-Woodinville

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Recycling MOA

11/14/2018
06/18/2019

6/30/2019
07/31/2021

NA

No funds exchanged

Gail Pethe

2019-020

Harley Marine Services, Inc.

Harley Marine Shore Power

03/26/19

12/30/19

$45,550

Ecology Grant AQDIESEL-1719-PSCAA-00057

Beth Carper
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CONTRACTS INITIATED IN FY19
as of 4/9/20
NUMBER
2019-021

VENDOR/RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION/PROJECT

START DATE

EXPIRES

AMOUNT

02/06/19

06/30/19

$11,487
$9,975.00
$11,400.00
$5,940.00
$695.00

Alma Villegas Consulting

Allentown Community Engagement Project

2019-022
2019-022-01
2019-022-02
2019-022-03
2019-022-04

Wildern Design & Interactive

Branding
Amends to extend contract date
Amends to exted contract date
Amends to change amount
Amends to change amount

02/05/19

6/30/2019
12/31/2019
06/30/2020
06/30/2020
06/30/2020

2019-023
2019-023-01

Anderson Fireplace & Spa

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

01/25/19

07/31/21

2019-024
2019-024-01

Barron Heating

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

1/25/2019

2019-025
2019-025-01

Evergreen State Heating

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

2019-026
2019-026-01

Four Day Fireplace

2019-027
2019-027-01

FUND SOURCE

PROJECT MGR/
CONTACT

Per Capita

Joanna Gangi

Per Capita
EVJ 501/Comm Comp 101 (50/50)
EVJ and Core Communications

Joanna Gangi
Andy Tudhope

TBD

WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005
AQWDSMK-1921-PSCAA-00012

Amy Warren

07/31/21

TBD

WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005

Amy Warren

01/25/19

07/31/21

TBD

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

01/25/19

07/31/21

TBD

WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005
WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005

Rich's for the Home

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

01/25/19

07/31/21

TBD

WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005

Amy Warren

2019-028
2019-028-01

Sundance Energy

WSRP Residential Wood Stove Dealer

01/25/19

07/31/21

TBD

WSRP Grant (Ecology)
AQWDSMK-1719-PSCAA-00005

Amy Warren

2019-029

Mohammed Ali Consulting, LLC

Survey services - ScRAPS

03/07/19

06/30/19

$1,600

Ecology Grant AQDIESEL-1719-PSCAA-00026

Beth Carper

2019-030

City of Seattle - SDOT

Western WA Clean Cities Coalition grant support

12/01/18

12/31/21

TBD

Labor match for grant

Landon Bosisio

2019-031

King County Metro Transit

ORCA card transit services

04/01/19

03/31/20

$54,000

All agency

Heather Beckford

2019-033

Archbright Membership

HR Services, consulting, resources

05/01/19

ongoing

$329/month

All agency

Heather Beckford

2019-034

Big Power Project LLC

Smoke season installation - Seattle Center

05/28/19

10/15/19

$15,000

Per Capita and civil penalty funds

Joanna Cruse

2019-035
2019-035-01

Bethel School District

Propane school bus grant work

05/31/19

12/30/20

$300,000.00
$37,500.00

EPA grant DE-01J53801
DERA FY 2019

Kelly O'Callahan

2019-036

Chargepoint

Agency Bolt EV charging

06/01/19

Month-tomonth

$120

All Agency

Kelly O'Callahan

2019-037

GreenLots

Agency Bolt EV charging

06/01/19

Month-tomonth

$120

All Agency

Kelly O'Callahan

2019-038

Quantum

Employee Surveys

05/02/19

04/26/20

$12,000

All Agency

Heather Beckford

2019-039
2019-039-01

Seattle Lake Cruises, LLC (dba
Waterways Cruises and Events)

Harbor craft engine replacement

05/30/19

01/31/20

$42,000.00
$28,000.00

EPA Grant DE-01J40801
EPA DERA Grant HC engine replacements

Beth Carper

2 of 5

Amy Warren
Amy Warren

CONTRACTS INITIATED IN FY20
as of 4/9/20
NUMBER

VENDOR/RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION/PROJECT

START DATE

EXPIRES

AMOUNT
$50,000

FUND SOURCE
Fee programs, per capita, civil penalty fund

PROJECT MGR/
CONTACT

2020-001

PrintWest

Printing and mailing services

07/01/19

06/30/21

2020-002

Foster Pepper

Legal services

08/07/19

06/30/20

2020-003

ABC Legal

Legal notices

07/09/19

06/30/20

$9,000

All agency funding

Rob Switalski

2020-004

Apex Legal

Legal notices

07/09/19

06/30/20

$2,000

All agency funding

Rob Switalski

2020-005

Pacific Power Group LLC

ScRAPS program - DPF cleaning support services

07/24/19

06/30/20

$70,000

Ecology Grant - AQDIESEL-1517-PSCAA-00026

Beth Carper

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

09/11/19

12/30/20

$75,000

EPA grant DE-01J53801

Kelly O'Callahan

07/30/19

Month-tomonth

$2,000

All agency funding

Graeme Carvlin

EPA grant DE-01J53801 / DERA FY2019

Kelly O'Callahan

Varies up to
FY20 budgeted Civil Penalties (previously collected)
amount ($450k)

Joanna Cruse

Jennifer Dold

2020-006 thru
Deleted contracts-revised
2020-010

NA

2020-011

University Place School District

School bus replacements (propane-powered)

2020-012

Amazon Web Services

2020-013
2020-013-1

Highline School District

School bus replacements (propane-powered)

7/10/2019
02/10/2020

12/31/2020
12/31/2020

$ 150,000
$ 37,500

2020-014

Snohomish School District

School bus replacements (propane-powered)

08/22/19

12/30/20

$75,000

EPA grant DE-01J53801

Kelly O'Callahan

2020-015

Tukwila School District

School bus replacements (propane-powered)

09/05/19

12/30/20

$150,000

EPA grant DE-01J53801

Kelly O'Callahan

2020-016

American Northwest Recycling

Wood stove recycling support for Wood Smoke
program

09/12/19

07/31/21

No funds
exchanged

NA

Amy Warren

2020-017

Sound Screening Services, Inc.

TERMINATED

08/01/19

TBD

2020-018

Inkscape

Freeware licensing - graphics software

08/09/19

06/30/25

2020-019

Center for Sustainable Energy

Multi-unit Dwelling EV Charging

04/01/19

03/31/22

2020-020

Anu Taranath

Racial Affinity Groups and Management Equity
Training

09/23/19

08/31/20

$9,300

Per Capita

Tania Park

2020-021

Aparajeeta Duttchoudhury

Racial Affinity Groups and Management Equity
Training

09/23/19

08/31/20

$9,300

Per Capita

Tania Park

2020-022

Serena Maurer

Racial Affinity Groups and Management Equity
Training

09/23/19

08/31/20

$9,300

Per Capita

Tania Park

2020-023

CDW Government LLC

Office-365 Exchange Online

11/01/19

06/30/20

$40,000

All agency funding

Andy Tudhope

2020-024

Washington Green Schools

Breathing Easier

10/14/19

08/31/20

$19,800

Per Capita

Julio Sánchez

12/31/20

Variable
depending on
credit card
activity

Credit Card Arrangement - funding varies

Karen Houser

2020-025

US Bank

Credit Cards

09/24/19

Services billed as
All agency funding
ordered
NA

NA - no funds exchanged

$15,000 match Per Capita
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Heather Beckford
Clement Miege
Kelly O'Callahan

CONTRACTS INITIATED IN FY20
as of 4/9/20
NUMBER

VENDOR/RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION/PROJECT

START DATE

EXPIRES

AMOUNT

FUND SOURCE

Variable $30,000 budget All agency funding (legal expenses)
for all non-

2020-026

Bucklin Evens

Legal Services - real estate

09/19/19

Month to
month

2020-027

Crowley Marine Services

Engine Replacement

02/11/20

12/31/20

$180,000

2020-028

All Phase Comm LLC

Support & Maintenance of ShoreTel Phone System

12/24/19

10/22/20

$5,248

2020-029

Visa U.S.A. Inc

Confidential Disclosure Agreement (related to online
credit card payment arrangement)

11/05/19

06/30/20

2020-030

Villa Comunitaria

Electric Car Share in South Park

01/03/20

03/02/20

2020-031

Environmental Coalition of South
Seattle (ECOSS)

Electric Car Share in South Park

01/03/20

2020-032

Template

Marine Engine Replacements

2020-033

ICF International

2020-034

PROJECT MGR/
CONTACT
Jennifer Dold

DERA Grant DE-01J40801

Beth Carper

All Agency funding

Andy Tudhope

NA - no funds exchanged

Andy Tudhope

$13,926

Per Capita

Angela Song

03/02/20

$11,851

Per Capita

Angela Song

TBD

09/30/21

TBD

Clean Fuel Standard Draft Rule Comment Follow-up

01/01/20

06/30/20

$45,000

Donahue, Goldberb, Weaver &
Littleton

Legal Services in connection with the Regional Clean
Fuel Standard

12/19/19

Termination
with 30 day
notice

2020-035

Columbia-Willamette Clean Cities
Coalition

Implementing Western Washington Clean Cities
Coalition

04/02/20

02/28/21

2020-036

Neopost

Postage Machine Lease Services

02/03/20

04/30/25

2020-037

Gibbs Houston Pauw

Agreement for Legal Services

02/24/20

04/30/20

$675

2020-038

Centerline Logistics Corp

Marine Engine Replacements - CE Tug

TBD

09/30/21

$289,000

Ecology Grant - OTGP-2020-PSCAA - 00024 / EPA
Amy Warren
& State DERA funding

2020-039

Star Marine Inc

Star Marine Engine Replacement

TBD

09/30/21

$294,000

Ecology Grant - OTGP-2020-PSCAA - 00024 / EPA
Beth Carper
& State DERA funding

2020-040

Western Tugboat Company

Western Tugboat Engine Replacement

03/23/20

09/30/21

$152,000

Ecology Grant - OTGP-2020-PSCAA - 00024 / EPA
Beth Carper
& State DERA funding

2020-041

Foss Maritime

Foss Maritime Engine Replacement

TBD

12/30/20

$86,000

OTGP-2020-PSCAA-00024 (Ecology Harbor Vessel
Eng Repl) and
Beth Carper
DE-01J40801 (EPA Harbov Vessel Eng Repl)

2020-042

Artifex Software, Inc.

TERMINATED

TBD

02/07/25

N/A

2020-043

Life Cycle Associates, LLC

Consultant Support for PCHB Hearing

03/17/20

06/30/21

2020-044

Pacific Office Automation

Renew/Replace lease for high volume color multifunction copier/printers

03/03/20

03/03/25

$1885/month

2020-045

Montana Von Fliss

Public Speaking Training

02/25/20

06/30/20

$4,150

2020-046

Indian Type Foundry

Poppins Font License

02/25/20

12/31/90

N/A

Ecology Grant - OTGP-2020-PSCAA - 00024 / EPA
Beth Carper
& State DERA funding
Per Capita and Civil Penalties

$325/hr attorney
Legal Reserve
$50/hr paralegal
$110,000

$90,000 US Dept of Energy contract
$20,000 Coalition Dues

$298.00/month All Agency funding
All agency funding (legal expenses)

N/A

$340/hour
$230/hour other Legal Reserve
services
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Phil Swartzendruber

Jennifer Dold

Amy Fowler
Andy Tudhope
Heather Beckford

Clement Miege

Jennifer Dold

All Ageny Funding

Andy Tudhope

Per Capita

Tania Park

No funds exchanged

Tania Park

CONTRACTS INITIATED IN FY20
as of 4/9/20
NUMBER

VENDOR/RECIPIENT

DESCRIPTION/PROJECT

FUND SOURCE

PROJECT MGR/
CONTACT

START DATE

EXPIRES

AMOUNT

03/05/20

TBD

$80,000

Legal Reserve

Jennifer Dold

TBD

06/20/21

$9,800

Per Capita

Adam Petrusky
Heather Beckford

2020-047

Puget Sound Energy, Inc.

Cost Reimbursement Agreement for PSE-related
PCHB Proceeding

2020-048

Just Health Action

Duwamish Clean Air Program Coordination

2020-049

Compensation Connections LLC

Classification and Compensation Study

03/23/20

09/30/20

TBD

HR/Professional Fees 700-8085

2020-050

Summit Law PLLC

Legal Services

03/19/20

04/30/20

TBD

(Amount - Hourly) LegalExpense (Professional Fees Heather Beckford

2020-051

King County Metro

ORCA Business Card Passport

05/01/20

04/30/21

$53,010

All Agency Funding

Heather Beckford

2020-052

The Northwest Seaport Alliance

Drayage Truck Education Outreach ILA

TBD

06/30/21

$12,000

Ecology DPF Cleaning Grant 0026

Beth Carper

2020-053

Gibbs Houston Pauw

Legal Services with Law Offices of Gibbs Houston
Pauw

01/18/20

04/30/20

$675

All agency Funding

Heather Beckford
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